




 
NORTH AURORA VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, November 20, 2023 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Village Board meeting was conducted live remotely 

via telecommunications. 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
SILENT PRAYER - MEDITATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Jason Christiansen, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark 
Guethle, Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
& Economic Development Director Nathan Darga, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Village 
Engineer/Assistant Public Works Director Brandon Tonarelli, Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS – None 
 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT-2023 Halloween Property Recognition Program Winners 
Mayor Gaffino awarded the winners of the Beautification Committee’s 2023 Halloween Property 
Recognition Program their certificates and prizes for their winning entries.  On hand were 4th place 
winners Arndt Family of 410 West State Street, 2nd place Damato Family of 480 Mount Court, and 1st 
place Klemencic Family of 2552 McDuffee Circle.  
 
APPOINTMENT- Beautification Committee Member-Joel Unroe 
Mayor Gaffino moved to appoint Joel Unroe to the Village’s Beautification Committee.  There were no 
objections from the Village Board regarding the appointment. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Village Board Minutes Dated 11/06/2023; Committee of the Whole Minutes Dated 11/06/2023 
2. Bills List Dated 11/20/2023 in the Amount of $696,028.40 
3. Approval of Salt Purchase with Cargill in the Amount of $103,272.00 not to Exceed $123,926.40 
4. Approval of Salt Purchase Compass Minerals in the Amount of $103,272.00 not to Exceed 

$123,926.40 
5. Approval of 2024 Meeting Schedule 
6. Approval of Resolution Acknowledging Substantial Completion Triggering the One-Year 

Maintenance Period and Reduction of the Surety for Public Improvements for the Building 
Located at 930 Ice Cream Drive (Formerly 840 Ice Cream Drive)  
 

Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Lowery. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee 
Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 



1. Approval to Award Bid for Demolition of 40 Monroe Street to Fox Excavating, Inc. in the 
Amount of $27,500.00 

 
Community & Economic Development Director Nathan Darga explained that the Village had four 
different companies attend the pre-bid meeting and three of them submitted bids with the lowest bid from 
Fox Excavating out of Batavia for $27,500. 
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Niedzwiedz and seconded by Trustee Curtis. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

2. Approval to Waive Bids for Well #6 Rehabilitation and Maintenance and Award Contract 
to Layne Christensen Company in the Amount Not to Exceed $370,000. 

 
Village Engineer/Assistant Public Works Director Brandon Tonarelli stated that the Village’s Water well 
#6 was due to have its’ pump and motor pulled for inspection and preventative maintenance.  The last 
service on the Well was eleven years prior, it is recommended to perform this maintenance service on the 
Wells on an eight to ten year cycle.  Staff was requesting to waive the bids for the maintenance projects.  
Tonarelli gave the reasons that the Byron Jackson Motors that are in the Village’s Wells contain mercury 
seals, Layne Christiansen is the only Byron Jackson manufacturing representative in Illinois.  Layne 
Christiansen also built the Well and has maintained all the other Wells within the Village.  The Village 
also has a professional service agreement with Layne Christiansen which provides the Village with a 
discount.   
Tonarelli stated that the base cost of the rehabilitation was estimated to be approximately $357,000, 
however the final cost will be determined once the Well has had its’ motor, pump and additional 
equipment pulled.  Currently the project was budgeted for $270,000, however since the budget had been 
approved, the costs of labor and equipment has risen.  The Cost of a replacement pumping assembly had 
also been included in the estimate due to previous experience with Village Wells.   
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Salazar and seconded by Trustee Guethle. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – 
yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

3. Approval to Award Bid for Water Division Vehicle Equipment to Monroe Truck 
Equipment in the Amount of $41,449.0 

 
Assistant Director Tonarelli stated that the Village Board had previously approved a contract with 
Knapheide Equipment to retrofit two trucks in the Water Division in the amount of $38,740.70.  Upon 
following up with the company on the status of the equipment, staff was told that Knapheide had not 
placed the order and was having trouble getting them placed and establishing a timeline for getting the 
work completed.  Staff then reached out to the second lowest bidder, Monroe Truck Equipment, whose 
quote was $41,449.00.  Staff was recommending that the Village cancel the contract with Knapheide and 
award the contract to Monroe Truck Equipment.   
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Curtis. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee 
Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT – Mayor Gaffino wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving. 
 
TRUSTEES COMMENTS – None 



 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – Administrator Bosco stated that Public Works was wrapping up the 
leaf collection program and putting up holiday decorations in Riverfront Park for the upcoming Making 
Spirits Bright event on Saturday, December 2nd.   
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT – None 
 
VILLAGE DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Finance – None 
2. Community Development – None 
3. Police – None 
4. Public Works – None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Curtis and seconded by Trustee Lowery. All in favor.  Motion 
approved. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Jessi Watkins 
Village Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, November 20, 2023 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Village Board meeting was conducted live remotely 

via telecommunications. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Jason Christiansen, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark 
Guethle, Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
& Economic Development Director Nathan Darga, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Village 
Engineer/Assistant Public Works Director Brandon Tonarelli, Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS – None 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS - None 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

1. Zoning Code Text Amendments 
Administrator Bosco stated that staff had been updating the Village Code and was now reviewing zoning 
code.  Bosco stated that Director Darga was planning to do larger changes in the upcoming months, 
presently he was presenting the Board with some minor updates, including a change to the public hearing 
notice signs. 

Community & Economic Development Director Nathan Darga explained that most of the changes in this 
round of updates was removing redundant or unused provisions, moving things that are in the incorrect 
sections, updating definitions and an update on Public Hearing signs.  He provided an example of what 
was to be removed and what was to be retained on the Public Hearing signs.  This change was in an effort 
to make the information on the signs larger and more readable to passers-by.   

Mayor Gaffino asked if a website could be added to make information more accessible as opposed to a 
phone number.  Darga agreed.   

Trustee Curtis asked if the Village would be listing the current zoning and the change requested in the 
“Description of Requests” field of the sign.  Darga stated in that field, he would list whether or not it was 
a PUD or if it was an actual zoning change. 

There were no further questions from the Board, and had positive feedback for the changes. 

 

2. Building Code Update 
 



Administrator Bosco reminded the Board that it was the Village’s plan to have the building codes updated 
to the 2021 codes by January 1, 2024. 

Director Darga, as a reminder to the Board, provided a list of the building codes that the Village was 
preparing to adopt.  He explained why the changes were so lengthy, stating that chapter one of each book 
needed to be amended to reflect the Village’s own administrative process.  The second groups of 
amendments takes the national codes and adapts them to reflect the needs of the Village.  Darga stated 
that the third group of changes are actual code changes.  These were amendments proposed in an effort to 
adapt the code to reflect what has determined to be appropriate for the Village.    

There were no questions from the Board, there was expressed approval for the changes.  

3. Sales Tax Referendum Question 
Administrator Bosco reminded the Board that the non-home rule sales tax referendum question was born 
from conversations regarding how to fund the new public works facility.  While there were different 
options for financing the facility, staff believed that this one would generate enough income to pay the 
debt annually on the new building.   

Finance Director Jason Paprocki reminded the Board of the discussion during the October 16, 2023 
Committee of the Whole meeting, where a few different funding sources were laid out for the projected 
building cost of $18 million based on current interest rates, length of borrowing term and the amount 
borrowed.  Staff estimates that this would equate to about a $1.2 to $1.5 million a year in an annual debt 
payment.   

Non-home rule sales tax can be used on public infrastructure, property tax relief, and municipal 
operations (until July 1, 2030).  Utilizing funds from a non-home rule sales tax for the purpose of funding 
a new public works facility would fall into the public infrastructure category.  The additional income from 
increasing the non-home rule sales tax would ensure a fully funded Capital Plan going forward, to assist 
in maintaining the Village’s infrastructure.   

Staff reviewed various revenue options of revenue, the non-home rule sales tax stood out as an option 
because it shares the burden of cost between both residents and non-residents.  The revenue is based on 
purchases rather than utilities or property owners.  As a non-home rule community, the Village is able to 
go up to 1% total for a non-home rule sales tax, the Village currently has a 0.5% sales tax, so is able to 
request an increase of another 0.5%.   Paprocki stated that this increase would limit the Village’s 
dependency on its current revenues.  As the Village’s other financial obligations increase in upcoming 
years, the Village would be pinched on how much money would be available to use for the debt payment.   

Paprocki explained that for every $100 of qualifying purchases, the customer would pay an additional .50 
cents.  The non-home rule sales tax does not apply to items that must be titles or registered with the state, 
groceries and food not sold for immediate consumption, prescription medicines and certain 
nonprescription items with medicinal value, and prescription and non-prescription medical appliances.  
The Village’s normal 1% sales tax it receives renders about $7 million annually, the current 0.5% non-
home rule sales tax is about $1.4-$1.5 million.   

The Village’s current sales tax rate was 7.5%, the Village’s non-home rule sales tax portion of that was a 
half percent.  Paprocki provided comparables to local municipalities, both home rule and non-home rule.  
The Village was at least a half percent lower than all comparables.   

Paprocki explained what would happen if the referendum failed and the additional $1.3-$1.5 million 
could not be captured by the non-home rule sales tax.  He stated that additional revenue sources would 



have to be investigated, such as increase of utility tax which could be done by the Village Board via 
ordinance, however that would be expected to only bring in about $450,000 annually and could cost a 
homeowner between $30-$50 increase annually.  General Fund Capital Transfers of approximately 
$600,000 may be eliminated.  Capital replacement schedules would be delayed.  Operations and services 
may be reduced to fund Capital. 

Paprocki presented the Board with the proposed question that would appear on voter’s ballots.  “Shall the 
corporate authorities of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, increase its Non-Home Rule 
Municipal Retailers’ Occupation Tax and Non-Home Rule Municipal Service Occupation Tax form 0.5% 
to a rate of 1.0% for expenditures on municipal operations, expenditures on public infrastructure, and/or 
for property tax relief?” 

Trustee Curtis asked about the phrasing of the question and whether or not it could be changed to make it 
more accessible for people to understand.  Administrator Bosco stated that this question was brought to 
the Village’s Attorney Drendel who stated that the phrasing of the question had to be substantially similar 
to the statute and how it is written.  Attorney Drendel added that the way the question was phrased was 
the exact language out of the statute, what the legislature believed to be clear and unambiguous.   

There was discussion of rephrasing the question in an effort to make it more appealing and consumable to 
voters.   

Administrator Bosco asked the Village Board how they would like to proceed.  He asked if they wanted 
to proceed with the referendum, and if so, how they would like the referendum question to read. 

There was discussion regarding the phrasing of the referendum question.  Trustee Guethle believed the 
question to be fine as is while Trustee Curtis felt that it was phrased as a negative.  Trustee Salazar 
questioned the “for property tax relief” aspect of the referendum question, stating that it was a misleading 
or unclear statement.  There was further discussion. 

Administrator Bosco stated that if the Village Board wanted this referendum question to be on the next 
ballot, it would have to be certified by the Village Board’s next meeting.  At that meeting, staff was 
planning to bring the certified question before the Village Board for approval.  At the Committee of the 
Whole meeting that follows, staff had planned on adding to the agenda a discussion regarding an 
education campaign for voters.   

Trustee Lowery explained that he believed that psychologically, if an idea is placed earlier in a narrative, 
it has more of an impact on the reader.  He felt that approach would be beneficial in wording the 
referendum question in order to “sell” it or make the idea more appealing.  Attorney Drendel stated that a 
local governmental body could not “sell” a referendum question to the voter.  Drendel also said that the 
Village and its’ representatives could not advocate for the passing of a referendum.  They could provide 
information/education.  He also stated he believed that if the Village used the exact wording in the statute, 
however rearranged for the referendum question, it may be certified.  

There was discussion regarding the phrasing “occupational tax” versus “sales tax’.  Attorney Drendel 
stated that in fact what the Village was requesting was an occupational tax, it is a tax that is placed on the 
retailer that is then passed on to the consumer.   

Paprocki continued his presentation, he explained that no employee or elected official may use their 
official position to influence others or engage in political activities while at work or on duty.  He touched 
on some of the ideas that would be discussed at a later Committee of the Whole meeting, such as having a 
dedicated website to provide information to residents, including FAQ’s, scheduled social media 



informational updates, adding information to the community sign and newsletter, offer three public works 
facility tours and three town hall meetings.  

Administrator Bosco gave further details on how the Village planned on implementing these ideas. 

There was additional discussion regarding whether or not a Village Board member could speak about the 
proposed referendum in their personal capacity.  Attorney Drendel stressed that while it is within a 
Trustee’s constitutional rights to speak about it, it cannot be done in the capacity of Trustee.  It cannot be 
done on Village time with utilizing Village resources.  There was additional discussion regarding this. 

Director Paprocki presented the Board with an election timeline.  The next steps would be the Village 
Board would vote on the question at the December 4, 2023 Board meeting; the deadline to submit the 
approved question to Kane County will be January 11, 2024; Kane County will begin to mail vote-by-
mail ballots as well as early voting at the County Clerk’s office only begins on February 8, 2024; Early 
voting at permanent polling places begins on March 4, 2024; the General Primary Election will be held on 
March 19, 2024.  

There was discussion whether or not Kane County was approving their own referendum for a sales tax 
increase. 

The Village Board was in favor of moving forward with the referendum. 

Administrator Bosco reviewed steps that would be taken if the referendum should fail. 

Administrator Bosco stated that staff would work with Attorney Drendel to see if there was a way to 
reword the referendum question to clarify it for voters.  He would then come back to the next Board 
meeting with options of certified questions to choose from. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion to adjourn made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz.  All in favor.  Motion 
approved.   
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Jessi Watkins 
Village Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



To Be Paid Proof List

11/29/2023 - 10:27AM

mflatt

Printed:

User:

Accounts Payable

Batch: 00501.12.2023

Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

AIM

046510

 150.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No1001208

  01-430-4267 Finance Services Addition Of Transportation Option

1001208 Total:  150.00

AIM Total:  150.00

Amundsen Davis, LLC

039030

 337.50  0.00 12/04/2023  011/27/2023 No731046

  01-430-4260 Legal August 2023- Legal

731046 Total:  337.50

Amundsen Davis, LLC Tot  337.50

AT&T Mobility

468386

 1,255.12  0.00 12/04/2023  011/27/2023 No*** 287322279713

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity Cell Phone- PD 9/20 - 10/19

287322279713 Total:  1,255.12

AT&T Mobility Total:  1,255.12

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 1

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=046510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=046510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=156afc37-3aa1-485e-9df2-24d5644dd6f1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4267
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2e30b62e-9dd8-487b-b3ed-933b4a688bbb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4260
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468386
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468386
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8214e28d-98f2-4d01-a497-6679da26cc28
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4652


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

B & F Construction

015600

 9,206.71  0.00 12/04/2023  011/13/2023 No18485

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services New Inspections- Oct 2023

18485 Total:  9,206.71

 600.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/10/2023 No63191

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Plan Review- Riverfront Chrysler EV Charger

63191 Total:  600.00

B & F Construction Total:  9,806.71

Borekci Real Estate, LLC

468158

 20,042.57  0.00 12/04/2023  011/15/2023 No11152023

  01-490-4781 Sales Tax Rebates NATC Rebate June 23 - Aug 23- Inline 100%

11152023 Total:  20,042.57

Borekci Real Estate, LLC T  20,042.57

Carl & Janice DeBroux

468513

 23.23  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023-01

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

11172023-01 Total:  23.23

Carl & Janice DeBroux To  23.23

Chicago Communications LLC

468149

 1,702.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/27/2023 No347726

  01-440-4558 Emergency Management Vehicle Upgrade

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 2

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=015600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=015600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3ccdddaa-dec1-44b8-adec-16f2618ab224
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4276
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1ce7e7c4-e1e6-4c57-b0a9-30696f8f6c8c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4276
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468158
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468158
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cf9bac7e-394c-4c09-a1f0-cb779ac49e95
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-490-4781
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468513
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468513
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3ee7327f-149d-47c0-be33-e8a45cd8f5f6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:60-320-3340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468149
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468149
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fb8b5cf2-d05b-4712-b45b-ed4afd617890
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4558


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

347726 Total:  1,702.00

Chicago Communications L  1,702.00

Chicago Metropolitan Agency

034990

 779.15  0.00 12/04/2023  011/6/2023 No2023MUN 174

  01-410-4390 Dues & Meetings 2024 CMAP Contribution

2023MUN 174 Total:  779.15

Chicago Metropolitan Age  779.15

Deborah Souvenir

468514

 30.10  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023-01

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

11172023-01 Total:  30.10

 0.65  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenance Credit Refund

11172023-02 Total:  0.65

Deborah Souvenir Total:  30.75

Drendel & Jansons Law Group

028580

 2,928.25  0.00 12/04/2023  011/14/2023 No8164

  01-430-4260 Legal Legal Services- Gen, Admin, Fin/ Oct 2023

8164 Total:  2,928.25

 1,732.75  0.00 12/04/2023  011/14/2023 No8167

  01-430-4260 Legal Legal Services- Liquor/ Oct 2023

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 3

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=034990
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=034990
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8718ef3f-04d2-4c16-b9bc-c2afd91cf92e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-410-4390
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468514
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468514
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=42e23902-a1de-45b6-ab72-821adef98690
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:60-320-3340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2a8dfc2a-01b5-4ba9-b85d-fd297f2a771b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:18-320-3350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028580
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028580
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0eb0d7b0-e996-4b19-8ea3-bd72e8573a51
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4260
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ac7b0d7b-5cf6-4391-a295-5650beabcbfa
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4260


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

8167 Total:  1,732.75

 614.25  0.00 12/04/2023  011/13/2023 No8173-01

  01-441-4260 Legal Legal Services- CommDev/ Oct 2023

8173-01 Total:  614.25

 195.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/13/2023 No8173-02

  90-000-E288 NA Fire Department Legal Services- Fire District Review/ Oct 2023

8173-02 Total:  195.00

 1,472.25  0.00 12/04/2023  011/14/2023 No8212

  01-440-4260 Legal Legal Services- PD/ Oct 2023

8212 Total:  1,472.25

 1,186.25  0.00 12/04/2023  011/14/2023 No8213

  01-445-4260 Legal Legal Services- PW/ Oct 2023

8213 Total:  1,186.25

Drendel & Jansons Law Gr  8,128.75

Entenmann-Rovin Co.

000450

 3,101.40  0.00 12/04/2023  011/16/2023 No0177815-IN

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance NAPD Insignias

0177815-IN Total:  3,101.40

Entenmann-Rovin Co. Tota  3,101.40

Euclid Managers

049670

 461.54  0.00 12/04/2023  011/13/2023 No11132023

  01-000-2057 Short-Term Disability Short-Term Disability- Dec 2023

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 4

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ace9a470-4fb7-4621-8e11-3986bc474e89
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4260
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b3d918c5-cfc3-4ce6-8fa0-bc26685b989a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E288
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f4a5489b-fe52-45e5-98fe-1dc9a9084a37
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4260
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=18911174-c401-4bf8-83b7-089156f34d43
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4260
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000450
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000450
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0287c0b0-7786-49b8-a81f-607a78110034
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4160
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049670
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049670
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=875a4677-63b7-497c-8a1b-5356d6e6e33e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-000-2057


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

11132023 Total:  461.54

Euclid Managers Total:  461.54

Gary Carlson

468511

 15.73  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023-01

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

11172023-01 Total:  15.73

 0.15  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenance Credit Refund

11172023-02 Total:  0.15

Gary Carlson Total:  15.88

Geneva Construction Co.

000530

 59,523.53  0.00 12/04/2023  011/10/2023 No60885

  21-450-4875 Capital Improvements 2023 Road Program

60885 Total:  59,523.53

Geneva Construction Co. T  59,523.53

Harris Computer Systems

041620

 4,657.70  0.00 12/04/2023  011/27/2023 NoMUNCT0000927

  01-441-4380 Training CityView Training

MUNCT0000927 Total:  4,657.70

 1,305.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/27/2023 NoMUNXT0000036

  01-441-4380 Training CityView Training

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 5

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468511
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468511
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=484652ec-bce2-440b-b72e-f86e1fc001fd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:60-320-3340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=91022c7b-389d-4171-9794-8a205b6a8953
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:18-320-3350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000530
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000530
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=71bce957-8ad1-4160-ba40-8fa7bf47c7f3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:21-450-4875
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041620
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041620
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=dde89cb3-3d04-4bf3-a25d-a02a62e69458
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7fbb37cf-90e4-4286-84f1-d5363959e6ab
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4380


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

MUNXT0000036 Total:  1,305.00

Harris Computer Systems T  5,962.70

Illinois State Police Bureau of

041810

 84.75  0.00 12/04/2023  010/1/2023 No*** COST CTR 03557

  01-440-4799 Misc. Liquor License- Inv #20231003557

COST CTR 03557 Total:  84.75

Illinois State Police Bureau  84.75

Jason Harrison

468512

 15.48  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023-01

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

11172023-01 Total:  15.48

 0.29  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenance Credit Refund

11172023-02 Total:  0.29

Jason Harrison Total:  15.77

Kane County Animal Control

031620

 212.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/9/2023 No11092023

  01-440-4523 Animal Control Animal Control- Oct 2023

11092023 Total:  212.00

Kane County Animal Cont  212.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 6

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041810
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041810
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c4747243-b1df-443d-9585-63bb9c4fa324
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4799
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468512
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468512
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d84b9e22-fe63-4f32-ae6a-05d3af42ee8a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:60-320-3340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f34a2898-fb22-49fb-a6bc-425aa7c69500
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:18-320-3350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031620
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031620
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f072bfd1-d5ba-41a0-806b-a68d2e4ec1b4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4523


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Konica Minolta

024860

 119.10  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No290190673

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- Oct 2023

290190673 Total:  119.10

 74.83  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No290190683

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- Oct 2023

290190683 Total:  74.83

 71.15  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No290190788

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- Oct 2023

290190788 Total:  71.15

 71.15  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No290191499

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- Oct 2023

290191499 Total:  71.15

 128.17  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No290194622

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- Oct 2023

290194622 Total:  128.17

 43.77  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No290196400

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- Oct 2023

290196400 Total:  43.77

Konica Minolta Total:  508.17

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP

467663

 5,700.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/20/2023 No84836-01

  01-430-4265 Audit Services FY23 Audit

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 7

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024860
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024860
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=818e5ff1-4e83-446e-a43b-c6c046d0a540
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=898dcd3b-fae2-47a3-af3a-2bb2427a7e23
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=64f43742-12b0-4c3a-ad28-406df11e717c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=16d2b7c0-f9fa-4429-8c40-555997c201a4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=642bd69d-a840-4100-acca-8de1d4981f77
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e654efa7-324c-4063-a540-c90e1a3c4244
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467663
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467663
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c30686ab-5b6d-4585-a01b-9b43a0b55a59
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4265


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

84836-01 Total:  5,700.00

 2,000.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/20/2023 No84836-02

  12-438-4265 Audit Services TIF Compliance Report

84836-02 Total:  2,000.00

 420.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/20/2023 No84836-03

  01-430-4265 Audit Services Police DOI Report

84836-03 Total:  420.00

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP T  8,120.00

Marberry Cleaners

008430

 12.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/3/2023 No4160BB

  01-440-4450 Prisoner Mtce & Supplies Prisoner Blanket Cleaning

4160BB Total:  12.00

Marberry Cleaners Total:  12.00

Metro West COG

032210

 75.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/1/2023 No5222-01

  01-430-4390 Dues & Meetings Recognition Dinner- Bosco

5222-01 Total:  75.00

 300.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/1/2023 No5222-02

  01-410-4390 Dues & Meetings Recognition Dinner- Mayor & Trustees (3)

5222-02 Total:  300.00

Metro West COG Total:  375.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 8

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5f6936fc-3683-4f35-8dcd-6e4c07c5bca3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:12-438-4265
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1d96aef1-2ba5-42d4-accd-1e01c7b4a9b4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4265
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=008430
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=008430
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8ec558ee-6e9e-4127-9ee3-ab754d6977f9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4450
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032210
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032210
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=be559b9a-72f2-46c8-b03b-6005528d7bea
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4390
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fbca359e-d6de-406b-b8a0-35811792dfea
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-410-4390


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Mooney & Thomas, Pc

001040

 975.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No9216892

  01-430-4267 Finance Services Payroll Processing- Oct 2023

9216892 Total:  975.00

 75.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No9216916

  80-430-4581 Banking Services/Fees Police Pension- Nov 2023

9216916 Total:  75.00

Mooney & Thomas, Pc Tot  1,050.00

Motorola Solutions- STARCOM21

002980

 653.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/1/2023 No7968220231002

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity StarCom- Nov 2023

7968220231002 Total:  653.00

Motorola Solutions- STAR  653.00

MSAB Inc.

052550

 4,100.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/16/2023 No36212

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint XRY Cell Phone

36212 Total:  4,100.00

MSAB Inc. Total:  4,100.00

North Aurora NAPA, Inc.

038730

 18.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/18/2023 No450573-01

  01-445-4870 Equipment Rachet

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 9

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=adf85ddd-76c2-40d2-8a33-a058b9e3f8db
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4267
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=52f7b61d-a6e9-4a40-8045-6bb9e671c3ed
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:80-430-4581
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002980
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002980
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0bb82e8e-203e-4f63-ac72-79a95306bb4d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4652
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052550
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052550
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a39dee9d-8497-4ad5-b9f9-6913bf3da1f2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=04ae8d1d-ab84-4a43-9645-32f732529a81
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4870


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

450573-01 Total:  18.00

 40.32  0.00 12/04/2023  010/18/2023 No450573-02

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

450573-02 Total:  40.32

 25.98  0.00 12/04/2023  011/7/2023 No452143

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

452143 Total:  25.98

 1,546.99  0.00 12/04/2023  011/8/2023 No452269

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Vehicle Scanner Update

452269 Total:  1,546.99

North Aurora NAPA, Inc. T  1,631.29

Office Depot

039370

 0.16  0.00 12/04/2023  08/10/2023 No326911425001

  01-430-4411 Office Expenses Short-Pay On Original Invoice

326911425001 Total:  0.16

 15.49  0.00 12/04/2023  09/15/2023 No332063650001-01

  01-430-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

332063650001-01 Total:  15.49

 15.50  0.00 12/04/2023  09/15/2023 No332063650001-02

  01-445-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

332063650001-02 Total:  15.50

 15.50  0.00 12/04/2023  09/15/2023 No332063650001-03

  60-445-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 10

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4eed1cf2-b25b-4638-a896-93fe7b64eb51
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4511
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=605f7b84-7d88-45b6-a59f-1aeeca2a2546
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4511
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9d29aaa0-77d2-40b9-a604-7431a6e9acc9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4511
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1a7023d4-e92a-4777-95d4-fff27bc13848
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fdfe33f0-a7be-40fe-b1ea-7a9954bf9c9e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3b8d4a3c-9bc4-48a2-b25c-66c9995585bb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f4dddaba-7e36-49da-b216-97948150ca43
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:60-445-4411


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

332063650001-03 Total:  15.50

 15.50  0.00 12/04/2023  09/15/2023 No332063650001-04

  01-441-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

332063650001-04 Total:  15.50

 22.26  0.00 12/04/2023  011/2/2023 No333088639001-01

  01-430-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

333088639001-01 Total:  22.26

 8.51  0.00 12/04/2023  011/2/2023 No333088639001-02

  01-445-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

333088639001-02 Total:  8.51

 8.52  0.00 12/04/2023  011/2/2023 No333088639001-03

  60-445-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

333088639001-03 Total:  8.52

 8.52  0.00 12/04/2023  011/2/2023 No333088639001-04

  01-441-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

333088639001-04 Total:  8.52

 13.99  0.00 12/04/2023  011/3/2023 No334859248001

  01-430-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

334859248001 Total:  13.99

 26.55  0.00 12/04/2023  011/10/2023 No337038658001

  01-441-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

337038658001 Total:  26.55

 56.96  0.00 12/04/2023  010/24/2023 No337792991001

  01-430-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

337792991001 Total:  56.96

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 11

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b840d182-65c2-48b1-a091-768dae1b6c7b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2062e998-931c-4410-9a04-fe67790e3e25
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=498a617a-bc87-4e0c-8b76-5917bd993283
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fd42974b-5576-4f54-820b-b76639a4cd58
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:60-445-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f7cacce0-e52b-4b2a-acad-eb67c261ebcb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b8d46dae-7782-4782-8dfc-57fb252dc231
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4ee42720-f0d0-4b6a-982f-3ae01edf8f6d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2dd4647b-9147-4b56-955f-dad2d20b0ecd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4411


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Office Depot Total:  207.46

Ottosen DiNolfo Hasenbalg & Castaldo, Ltd.

031590

 1,385.95  0.00 12/04/2023  010/31/2023 No1802

  01-430-4260 Legal October 2023- Legal

1802 Total:  1,385.95

Ottosen DiNolfo Hasenbal  1,385.95

Paddock Publications, Inc.

026910

 69.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/29/2023 No268910

  01-445-4506 Publishing Public Hearing Notice

268910 Total:  69.00

 94.30  0.00 12/04/2023  011/4/2023 No269699

  01-445-4506 Publishing Bid Notice Streetlight- Orchard

269699 Total:  94.30

Paddock Publications, Inc.  163.30

Partners And Paws Veterinary Services LLC

468378

 411.74  0.00 12/04/2023  011/10/2023 No127476

  01-440-4460 Comfort Dog Supplies Annual Vaccines- Zelda

127476 Total:  411.74

Partners And Paws Veterin  411.74

Peerless Network, Inc

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 12

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031590
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031590
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=36e45caa-7ba3-4a2f-a6ca-17542969bc29
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4260
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=026910
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=026910
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1865050a-5dde-4be3-943b-5a2d45789aa0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4506
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9c32202e-8d3e-4742-a7d4-50957e9274fa
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4506
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468378
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468378
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3d0b14cf-4064-497c-b2b9-9ea97ff96f4d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4460
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468245


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

468245

 320.97  0.00 12/04/2023  011/15/2023 No37643

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity PRI Village/ PD

37643 Total:  320.97

Peerless Network, Inc Tota  320.97

RAY O'HERRON Co., INC

044220

 70.99  0.00 12/04/2023  05/23/2023 No2273046

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance Uniforms- Ivanyi

2273046 Total:  70.99

 113.90  0.00 12/04/2023  06/5/2023 No2275167

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance Honor Guard- Joswick

2275167 Total:  113.90

 40.50  0.00 12/04/2023  011/9/2023 No2306064

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance CSO - Ambrose

2306064 Total:  40.50

 703.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/10/2023 No2306493

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance CSO Body Armor- Ambrose

2306493 Total:  703.00

 60.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/13/2023 No2306849

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance CSU- Ambrose

2306849 Total:  60.00

RAY O'HERRON Co., INC  988.39

Signarama

029780

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 13

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468245
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9136af41-a372-49f3-96c8-49f6779c7cdf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4652
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044220
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044220
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7c15b9be-3042-4804-8aac-e9e732a567e8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4160
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=083f5bc6-1d06-47b2-9d55-49725eeec732
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4160
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c74ce277-690d-4ed1-b07c-147d254f06d8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4160
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f191c718-3914-473e-884e-363cd8bf4848
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4160
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e9463daa-3257-488c-a250-8bdaae82bb76
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4160
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029780
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029780


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 447.70  0.00 12/04/2023  011/24/2023 NoINV-20144

  01-490-4759 Community Events Reusable Banners- Making Spirits Bright

INV-20144 Total:  447.70

Signarama Total:  447.70

Skyline Tree Service & Landscaping

467665

 29,475.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/20/2023 No15046

  01-445-4532 Tree Service Chesterfield Tree Trimming

15046 Total:  29,475.00

Skyline Tree Service & Lan  29,475.00

Sonia Holliday

468515

 23.26  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

11172023 Total:  23.26

 2.01  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No11172023-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenace Credit Refund

11172023-02 Total:  2.01

Sonia Holliday Total:  25.27

Springbrook Software LLC

467920

 126.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/7/2023 NoINV-015103

  60-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint IVR Payments- October 2023

INV-015103 Total:  126.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 14

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8d822406-9509-405a-98f5-1c5e2fd53c6f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-490-4759
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467665
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467665
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1463ba1d-d434-4838-a989-9c7c1711ebed
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4532
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468515
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468515
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1eca2f9c-7a24-4cfb-9321-4f364b919814
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:60-320-3340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6db03fd9-0cad-4ea3-8c41-b1a544f5db45
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:18-320-3350
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467920
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467920
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bb055b66-837e-463f-aa4c-ace76d9125a9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:60-445-4510


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Springbrook Software LLC  126.00

State Police Services Fund

019170

 5,691.55  0.00 12/04/2023  011/20/2023 No11202023

  01-440-4380 Training ISP 640 Hour Basic Training- Blake

11202023 Total:  5,691.55

State Police Services Fund  5,691.55

Teska Associates, Inc.

024820

 236.20  0.00 12/04/2023  010/30/2023 No13685

  01-441-4280 Consulting Fees TIF Consultant

13685 Total:  236.20

Teska Associates, Inc. Tota  236.20

The Fields on Caton Farm, Inc

468516

 34,250.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/17/2023 No3031

  01-445-4532 Tree Service 100 Parkway Trees

3031 Total:  34,250.00

The Fields on Caton Farm,  34,250.00

Tim Kearney

468510

 750.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/16/2023 No11162023

  01-490-4759 Community Events Santa- Making Spirits Bright Event 12/2/23

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 15

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=019170
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=019170
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8d531bf9-692d-4299-b1f8-b79b7f74df5d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-440-4380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024820
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024820
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2eb5a7ad-6491-4ed4-b9c2-eef8f9c21c71
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4280
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468516
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468516
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ab7bfdd7-4e2d-4eff-982f-75942a2c1e0d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-445-4532
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b6263bd8-6266-42e4-a41e-ae82b9359f4f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-490-4759


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

11162023 Total:  750.00

Tim Kearney Total:  750.00

WBK Engineering, LLC

467655

 625.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24950

  01-441-4255 Engineering Site Review & Inspection

24950 Total:  625.00

 824.41  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24952

  01-441-4255 Engineering Development Team Meeting

24952 Total:  824.41

 1,559.06  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24953

  90-000-E279 ESI Constructors - Aurora Pack Site Inspection

24953 Total:  1,559.06

 1,260.87  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24954

  90-000-E110 NW Corner Randall & Oak(Lot 6) Site Inspection

24954 Total:  1,260.87

 619.55  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24955

  90-000-E128 Woodman's - Warehouse Addition Site Inspection

24955 Total:  619.55

 1,052.99  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24956

  90-000-E274 Randall Terrace LLC - Next Gen Site Inspection

24956 Total:  1,052.99

 664.55  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24957

  90-000-E263 Gerald Genesis Remodel Site Inspection

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 16

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467655
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467655
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fc956606-5d0f-459d-aedd-c0d8cdb28822
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4255
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bbc1592d-ed01-41c5-9ebf-dfe15549607a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4255
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=29ee5084-06a9-494a-a965-974890eacec3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E279
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=db2e8307-2c6d-4e5c-a1e3-797d02a14211
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E110
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=06bd852e-b63b-457b-934f-3ee0f19cc86b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E128
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=be774b9f-9e8f-4baa-a998-9d3916bb7eb9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E274
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fee4f872-eeb5-445b-a71f-06611fde3978
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E263


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

24957 Total:  664.55

 6,963.24  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24959

  90-000-E288 NA Fire Department Site Review & Inspection

24959 Total:  6,963.24

 22,338.27  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24960

  90-000-E273 Phelan Development - Park 88 Site Review & Inspection

24960 Total:  22,338.27

 3,382.52  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24961

  90-000-E284 Building C - Opus Site Review & Inspection

24961 Total:  3,382.52

 666.55  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24962

  90-000-E287 721 Airport Rd Dock Site Review & Inspection

24962 Total:  666.55

 2,811.10  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24963

  90-000-E232 DR Horton - FV Golf Course Site Inspection

24963 Total:  2,811.10

 3,488.60  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24964

  90-000-E264 McCue - Mooselakes Site Review & Inspection

24964 Total:  3,488.60

 1,010.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24965

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Site Review - Mirador #88

24965 Total:  1,010.00

 1,125.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24966

  90-000-E286 River Front RAM Truck Facility Site Plan Review

24966 Total:  1,125.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 17

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5d52c082-00ce-4953-9a79-9a104d56fa24
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E288
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d7af15ec-52da-427e-afae-87974c1ac41d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E273
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f7fc5b03-e39a-4b3b-849b-e4f7647e7388
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E284
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a04c850b-6ede-482a-95d2-c3b28b3c59fa
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E287
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6896163d-98a5-496a-9b90-35dfb1b91859
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E232
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=431b3cda-a5c2-47d5-9ea3-5cda626e3d8a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E264
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=67c6d32d-38ec-4060-9d24-dafa70de1f3e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-441-4276
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=67fcd97f-e4e5-4bb9-9f4e-1283e2078568
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E286


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 450.00  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24967

  90-000-E290 161 S Lincolnway Site Work Site Plan Review

24967 Total:  450.00

 76.25  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24968

  90-000-E142 Fortunato Restaurant Plan Review

24968 Total:  76.25

 985.31  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24969

  90-000-E144 Vequity - Orchard Commons Site Review & Inspection

24969 Total:  985.31

 1,428.78  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24970

  90-000-E268 Fox Metro Pump Station (151 N) Site Review & Inspection

24970 Total:  1,428.78

 3,094.06  0.00 12/04/2023  010/28/2023 No24971

  90-000-E270 Seasons at North Aurora Site Inspection

24971 Total:  3,094.06

WBK Engineering, LLC To  54,426.11

Weblinx Incorporated

031420

 200.00  0.00 12/04/2023  011/3/2023 No33268

  01-430-4512 Website Maintenance Website Maintenance- Nov 2023

33268 Total:  200.00

Weblinx Incorporated Tota  200.00

Williams Associates Architects, Ltd.

024930

 2,243.12  0.00 12/04/2023  09/28/2023 No0022005

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 18

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=909f8410-3d75-4d40-b0ef-3deb3e0a4617
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E290
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fdb62619-a376-4aa9-88b7-0dd3e86211de
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E142
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=60cc5fd6-68ad-4be0-bd38-3fcda9076b4f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E144
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=25f2c98d-63ce-40da-8260-2c1446188e68
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E268
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b106187e-445a-4e9c-ac07-7b5e727d41cf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:90-000-E270
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=839fab6b-849a-41fc-93bf-52ffefb9092c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4512
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024930
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024930
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=522affce-b0f5-4eda-9f56-5f2bbf58af12


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

  21-452-4501 Contractual Services PW Design Development

0022005 Total:  2,243.12

Williams Associates Archit  2,243.12

Zukowski, Rogers, Flood & McArdle

468435

 877.50  0.00 12/04/2023  011/14/2023 No165205

  01-430-4260 Legal October 2023- Legal

165205 Total:  877.50

Zukowski, Rogers, Flood &  877.50

Report Total:  260,309.07

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (11/29/2023 - 10:27 AM) Page 19

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:21-452-4501
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468435
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468435
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f91998a2-7f35-4bf3-aaeb-13252e978a1c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2024:01-430-4260


4-Dec-23 Village Board Meeting

NAME EVENT
EXPENSE or 

REIMBURSEMENT
DATE  AMOUNT 

Mark Gaffino

Metro West Business Partner 

Dinner Expense 11/17/2023  $     75.00 

Jessi Watkins

Metro West Business Partner 

Dinner Expense 11/17/2023  $     75.00 

Todd Niedezwiedz

Metro West Business Partner 

Dinner Expense 11/17/2023  $     75.00 

Jason Christiansen

Metro West Business Partner 

Dinner Expense 11/17/2023  $     75.00 

 TOTAL  $   300.00 

Travel and Expenses for Business Purposes





 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  
FROM: NATHAN DARGA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
SUBJECT: ORCHARD ACRES LOTS 1, 3, & 4 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
AGENDA: DECEMBER 4, 2023 REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

 

ITEM 
A Resolution Acknowledging Substantial Completion Triggering the One-Year Maintenance 
Period and Reduction of the Surety for Public Improvements for Orchard Acres Lot 1, Lot 3, and 
Lot 4 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
The three buildings on the west side of Orchard Road developed by Vequity are now 
Substantially complete.  These include the building with Verilife, the Taco Bell, and the 
Starbucks.  There have been several PUD amendments dating back to 2007 with the most 
recent approvals in 2021 (ORD 21-08-16-03).  The developer is requesting the reduction of the 
development security from $233,193.06 to $38,865.51 as determined by the Village Engineer.  
This will begin the one-year maintenance period.   
 



 

 RESOLUTION No. _____________________ 
 

RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
TRIGGERING THE ONE-YEAR MAINTENANCE PERIOD 

AND REDUCTION OF THE SURETY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
ORCHARD ACRES LOT 1, LOT 3, AND LOT 4 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Vequity Construction (the “Developer”) has substantially completed the 
public improvements associated with the Commercial Buildings located at Orchard Acres Lot 1 
(Verilife), Lot 3 (Taco Bell), and Lot 4 (Starbucks) (the “Public Improvements”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the Village acknowledge substantial 
completion of the Public Improvements, authorize a reduction of the associated surety to the one-
year maintenance amount, and trigger the beginning of the one-year maintenance period; and 
 
 WHEREAS, WBK Engineering, LLC, the Village engineers overseeing the Development 
(the “Village Engineer”), confirms the substantial completion of the public improvements, has 
created a one-year maintenance punchlist and recommends initiation of the one-year maintenance 
period.  
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and the Board of Trustees 
of the Village of North Aurora, as follows: 
 
 
 1. Recital set forth above and incorporated herein as the material findings of fact of the 
President and the Board of Trustees. 
 
 2. The Village hereby acknowledges substantial completion of the Public Improvements.   
 
 3. The surety for the Public Improvements is hereby authorized to be reduced from 
$233,193.06 to $38,865.51 as determined by the Village Engineer. 
 
 4. The one-year maintenance period shall begin from and after the passage and approval of 
this Resolution, during which time the Developer shall complete any punchlist items identified by 
the Village Engineer and satisfy all of the one-year maintenance obligations established by the 
North Aurora Code as a condition of acceptance of the Public Improvements, which acceptance 
and release of cash surety must be approved by the North Aurora Village Board after the one-year 
maintenance obligations have been satisfied. 
 
 5. This Resolution shall take immediate force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval as provided by law. 
 
 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
this ____ day of ___________, 2023, A.D. 
 



 

 
 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
____ day of ___________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 

Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
  
 
 
 
 Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 
Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this ____ day of __________, 2023, A.D. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jessi Watkins, Village Clerk 
 
 



 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 

FROM: NATHAN DARGA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: BUILDING CODE UPDATE  

AGENDA: DECEMBER 4, 2023, VILLAGE BOARD  

 
 
DISCUSSION 

International Code Council (ICC) codes are released every three years.  It is good practice to 
update the Village adopted codes every 6 to 9 years to stay current with these cycles.  Staff 
began working on a code update this summer.  At the same time, the state passed a law 
requiring minimum standards for building codes.  Beginning in 2025, this law requires the Village 
to be on the current cycle or the previous 9 years.  Staff is proposing to adopt the codes listed 
below: 
 

15.06 Adoption of the 2021 International Building Code (IBC) 

15.08 Adoption of the 2021 International Residential Code (IRC) 

15.10 Adoption of the 2021 International Existing Building Code (IEBC) 

15.12 Adoption of the 2020 National Electrical Code (NEC) 

15.14 Adoption of the 2021 International Mechanical Code 

15.16 Adoption of the Illinois Plumbing Code (2014 as adopted by the State) 

15.18 Adoption of the International Energy Code (2018 soon to be 2021, as adopted by 
the State) 

15.20 Adoption of the 2021 International Fuel Gas Code 

15.22 Adoption of the 2021 International Property Maintenance Code 

15.24 Adoption of the 2021 International Swimming Pool & Spa Code 

15.26 Adoption of the Illinois Accessibility Code (2018 as adopted by the State) 

15.28 Adoption of the 2021 International Fire Code 

15.30 Adoption of the National Fire Codes NFPA Codes 10-1194 
 
 

Attached please find a draft of the ordinance and all the amendments.  The Board reviewed the 
proposed changes at the November 6 and November 20 Committee of the Whole Meetings.  The 
codes will take effect on January 1, 2024.   



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 1 of 4 Pages 

  
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
Ordinance No. ___________________ 

 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 15 OF THE NORTH AURORA CODE TO ADOPT NEW 
BUILDING CODES 

 
 
 

Adopted by the 
Board of Trustees and President 
of the Village of North Aurora 

this ____ day of __________, 2023 
 

 
 

Published in Pamphlet Form 
by authority of the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 
this ____ day of __________, 2023 

by ________________________________. 
 
 
 
 

Signed _____________________________________ 
 
 
 

 

 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 2 of 4 Pages 

 
ORDINANCE NO._________________________ 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 15 OF THE NORTH AURORA CODE TO ADOPT NEW 

BUILDING CODES 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora has heretofore adopted Building Codes which are 

codified in Title 15, Chapter 15.04 through 15.38 of the Code of North Aurora, Illinois; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable to periodically amend the above-referenced sections in 

response to changes in technology, development practices, and community standards and to improve 

administration and enforcement procedures; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Community Development Department has reviewed the most recent updates of 

the various model building codes currently enforced in the Village and recommends the adoption of new 

building codes with local amendments as set forth herein; and, 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1:  The recitals set forth above are adopted and incorporated herein as the 

material findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 

 

SECTION 2: Title 15, Chapter 15.04 through Chapter 15.38 of the Code of North Aurora, 

Illinois is hereby amended to read as provided in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof by 

this reference. 

 

 SECTION 3: If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid or 

ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or 

effectiveness of the remaining portions of this Ordinance, or any part thereof. The Village Board of 

Trustees hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 3 of 4 Pages 

sentence, clause or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 

subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional, invalid or 

ineffective. 

 

 SECTION 4:  This Ordinance shall take full force and effect on January 1, 2024 and after 

its passage, approval, publication and such other acts as required by law.  

 
 
 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

this ____ day of ___________, 2023 A.D. 
 
 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 

______ day of ________________, 2023, A.D.  
 
Jason Christiansen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 
Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 
Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois this _____ day of ___________, 2023, A.D. 
 
 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Mark Gaffino, Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________   
Jessi Watkins, Village Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 4 of 4 Pages 

 
 

Exhibit A – Text of Title 15, Chapter 15.04 through 15.38 
 



Chapter 15.04 DEFINITIONS 

15.04.01 For the purposes of this Title, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 

Wherever the word “MUNICIPALITY” is used in the International Building Codes, it 
shall be held to mean the Village of North Aurora. 
 
Wherever the term “CORPORATION COUNSEL” is used in said Code, it shall be held 
to mean the Village Attorney for the Village of North Aurora. 
 
“BUILDING/CODE OFFICIAL” wherever referenced throughout this title shall be held 
to be the Director of Community Development, or their designee as determined by 
chapter 2.28 of the Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances.  
 
“I.C.C.” Wherever referenced throughout this title shall be held to mean the International 
Code Council. 
 
“FIRE CODE OFFICIAL” wherever referenced throughout this title or the adopted codes 
referring to the Fire code, this shall be held to mean the Fire Chief of the North Aurora 
Fire Protection District or their designee. 
 

Chapter 15.06 ADOPTION OF THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE 
 
15.06.010 Adoption.  There is hereby adopted by the Village of North Aurora for the purpose of 
establishing rules and regulations for the construction, alteration, removal, demolition, 
equipment, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of the buildings and structures, 
including permits and penalties, a building code known as the "International Building Code, 
2021 Edition" with all subsequent amendments, and all its referenced standards.  The code is 
adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  Effective January 1, 2024, the 
provisions thereof shall be controlling in the construction of all commercial and industrial 
buildings and other structures therein contained within the corporate limits of the Village. One 
(1) copy of said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public use, 
inspection, and examination. 
 
15.06.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions. The sections of the International Building 
Code, 2021 Edition listed below are hereby revised as follows: 
 

Chapter 1: 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended to insert “The Village of North Aurora.” 
 
Section 101.4.3 Plumbing is amended to read: The provisions of Illinois Plumbing Code 
shall apply to the installation, alteration, repair and replacement of plumbing systems, 



including equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings and appurtenances, and where 
connected to a water or sewage system. 
 
Section 103.1 is amended to read: Enforcement Agency.  The community development 
department shall be the agency in charge of the implementation, administration, and 
enforcement of the provisions of this code.  The building official shall be the Director of 
Community Development, or their designee as determined by chapter 2.28 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances.    
 
Section 104.10.1 Flood hazard areas is amended to read: Buildings in flood hazard areas 
shall follow the requirements of Title 15, chapter 15.64 of the Village of North Aurora 
Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 105.2 Work exempt from permit is amended to delete Building numbers 1, 2, 4, 
5, 6, 12 and 13. 
 
Section 105.7 Placement of permit is amended to read: The building permit job card shall 
be kept on the site of the work and be visible from the street until such time as a 
certificate of occupancy has been issued. 
 
Section l05.8 Construction Hours adds a new section to read: Construction may 
commence between the hours of 6:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. for Monday through Saturday 
and from 8:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. on Sunday. 
 
Section 109.2 Schedule of permit fees is amended to read: Where a permit is required, a 
fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 109.4 Work commencing before permit issuance is amended to read: any person 
who commences any work before obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to an 
additional fee in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 110.3.1.2 Approval of a foundation survey adds a new section to read: a 
foundation survey indicating the top of foundation elevations and foundation distances to 
the lot lines must be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of framing onto 
a foundation. 
 
Section 111.2 Certificate issued is amended to delete items 7, 10 and 11. 
 
Section 111.3 Temporary Occupancy is amended to read: The building official is 
authorized to issues a temporary certificate of occupancy before the completion of the 
entire work covered by the permit, provided that such portion or portions shall be 



occupied safely.  The building official shall set a time period during which the temporary 
certificate of occupancy is valid.  Temporary certificates of occupancy are subject to 
additional rules a set forth in chapter 15.52 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 113 Board of Appeals is deleted, and the following text added. Appeals shall be 
available as provided in Section 15.06.030 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 114.4 Violation penalties is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall violate a provision of this Code or shall fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who shall erect, construct, alter or repair a building or structure in 
violation of an approved plan or directive of the Building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this Code, shall be subjected to fines in 
accordance with Section 15.06.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 115.4 Unlawful continuance is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall continue any work in or about any building or structure after having been 
served with a stop work order, except such work as they may be directed to perform in 
order to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to fines in accordance 
with Section 15.06.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Chapter 2 
 
Section 202 Definitions is amended by adding the following definition: 
 
Bedroom: A conditioned room used for sleeping with four (4) dry walled walls, a door, 
and a closet, that shall be not less than seven (7) feet in any horizontal dimension, not less 
than seventy (70) square feet, a ceiling height of not less than seven (7) feet measured 
from the finished floor, electrical as required for bedrooms in the 2020 National 
Electrical Code, an emergency escape and rescue opening as required in the 2021 
International Residential Code, section R310.2., and mechanical ventilation as required in 
the 2021 International Residential Code, Chapter 16. 
 
High Rise Building: A building with an occupied floor located four (4) stories or greater 
above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access. 
 
Chapter 6 
 
Section 603.1.2 Piping is amended to delete "International Plumbing Code" and replace 
in lieu thereof the "Illinois Plumbing Code". 
 
Chapter 9 



 
Section 903.2 is deleted, and the following text added.  Approved automatic sprinkler 
systems in new buildings and structures shall be provided, regardless of square footage, 
in all Use Groups described in this Code.  Automatic sprinkler systems must be installed 
in accordance with applicable NFPA standards, manufacturer’s recommendations, UL 
listings, and good fire safety practices.  Automatic sprinkler systems must be maintained 
in full operational conditions at all times.  Automatic sprinkler systems shall be provided 
in all new residential Use Groups including town homes, and multi-family dwellings.   
 

Exceptions: 
One and two-family residences, real estate sales and construction trailers utilized 
during the development of property when approved by the code official, 
agricultural storage buildings less than 8,000 square feet. 

 
Sections 903.2.1 through 903.2.12 are herby deleted in its entirety. 
 
Section 903.3.7.1 adds a new section to read: Fire department connections shall be a 4” 
Storz. 
 
Section 903.4.3 Floor Control Valves is deleted, and the following text added: In multi-
story buildings, approved floor control valves with water flow switches shall be provided 
for each floor.  In large multi-tenant buildings, approved control valves with water flow 
switches shall be provided for each tenant. 
 
Section 905.13 adds a new section to read: Any building having multiple risers shall have 
a diagram(s) next to the riser area showing the building and what sections are protected 
by which risers. 
 
Section 905.14 adds a new section to read: If all areas cannot be reached with 150 feet of 
attach hose from the required standpipes, additional standpipes shall be added so this 
provision can be met. 
 
Section 907.1.3 Equipment is amended to read: Systems and components shall be listed 
and approved for the purpose for which they are installed.  New fire alarm control panels 
shall be addressable unless otherwise approved by the Code Official.  The equipment 
shall be capable of having the audio signal silence without resetting the fire alarm control 
panel.  All fire alarm control panels shall have an approved method of placing the system 
in trouble mode at the location of the alarm panel. 
 
Section 907.1.3.1 adds a new section to read: Annunciator panels shall be provided where 
more than one zone is provided.  The panel shall be visible from the building exterior or 
other approved location. 
 



Section 907.1.3.2 adds a new section to read: Each tenant space shall be separately zoned.  
When tenant spaces are protected by one common sprinkler system, smoke detectors will 
be installed to provide for zoning. 
 
Section 907.1.3.3 adds a new section to read: Multiple tenant spaces with a common 
alarm panel will have a white strobe over the unit’s front door to show activation in a 
particular unit. 
 
Section 907.1.3.4 adds a new section to read: A red strobe will be required over the door 
to show the alarm panel location. 
 
Section 907.1.3.5 adds a new section to read: The fire department shall have access at any 
time of the day or night to the fire alarm control panel without entering an individual 
living (dwelling) unit. 
 
Section 907.2 Where required – new buildings and structure is deleted, and the following 
text added: An approved manual, automatic, manual and automatic fire alarm system 
shall be provided in new or existing buildings and structures in accordance with Sections 
907.2.1 through 907.2.23.  Fire alarm systems shall be maintained in full operating 
condition at all times.  Where automatic sprinkler protection is installed in accordance 
with section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2 and connected to the building fire alarm system, 
automatic heat detection required by this section shall not be required.  An approved 
automatic fire detection system shall be installed in accordance with the provisions of this 
Code and NFPA 72.  Devices, combinations of devices, appliances and equipment shall 
comply with Section 907.2.  The automatic fire detectors shall be smoke detectors, except 
that an approved alternative type of detector shall be installed in spaces such as a boiler 
room where, during normal operation, products of combustion are present in sufficient 
quantity to actuate a smoke detector.   
 

Exception:  One and two-family residences unless specified elsewhere in this 
Code. 

 
Section 907.2.11 Single and multiple station smoke alarms is amended to read: Listed 
single- and multiple-station smoke alarms complying with UL 217 shall be installed in 
accordance with Sections 907.2.11.1 through 907.2.11.7 and NFPA 72 and per the current 
State of Illinois Smoke Detector Act. 
 
Section 907.5.2.3.2 to change “6 to 25” in the number of sleeping units chart to “1 to 25.”                                                                                                               
 
Chapter 11 
 



1101.2 Design is amended to read: Buildings and facilities shall be designed and 
constructed to be accessible in accordance with this code, ICC Al17.l and the Illinois 
Accessibility Code. The most restrictive requirements shall govern. 
 
Chapter 15 
 
Section 1507.1.2 Ice Barrier is amended to delete the exception in its entirety.  
 
Chapter 16 
 
Section 1612 Flood Loads is deleted, and the following text added: Buildings in flood 
hazard areas shall follow the requirements of Title 15, section 15.64 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Chapter 17 
 
Section 1704.2.3 State of special inspections is amended by deleting the exceptions. 
 
Section 1705.17 Exterior insulation and finish systems (EIFS) is amended by deleting 
exceptions 1 and 2 in their entirety. 
 
Chapter 18 
 
Section 1809.12 Timber footings are deleted in its entirety. 
 
Sections 1810.3.2.4 Timber and Section 1810.3.2.4.1 Preservative Treatment is deleted in 
their entirety. 
 
Chapter 19 
 
Section 1909 Adds a new section to read: Cold Weather Concrete.    
 
1909.1 Definition.  Cold weather defined by the American Concrete Institute (ACI) 306 
as: a period of more than three consecutive days where all of the following occur: 
 

The average daily temperature is less than forty (40) degrees Fahrenheit. 
 
The air temperature is not greater than fifty (50) degrees Fahrenheit for more than 
one-half of any 24 hour period. 
 
The average daily air temperature is the average of the highest and lowest 
temperatures occurring during the period from midnight to midnight. 

 



1909.2 When cold weather concrete is in effect; footings, trenches, foundations, and piers 
shall be poured only on frost-free soil. The architect and/or engineer of record shall 
provide to the building official a cold weather concrete outline meeting ACI 306 
requirements for review. Concrete must be protected for not less than forty-eight (48) 
hours with insulating blankets. 
 
1909.3 Flatwork: After the first frost, the Building Official shall determine whether 
flatwork can continue. No flatwork will be allowed outside of buildings or garages from 
November 15th to April 1st without the approval of the Building Official. Flatwork is 
allowed in a building or garage, as long as the inside temperature is maintained at not less 
than fifty (50) degrees Fahrenheit for not less than 48 hours.  The use of heaters that 
expel gases into the area above a concrete floor shall be vented to the outside to avoid 
carbonation, which may cause dusting to the concrete surface. 
 
Chapter 29 
 
Section 2902.3 Required public toilet facilities is amended to read: Customers, patrons 
and visitors shall be provided with public toilet facilities in structures and tenant spaces 
intended for public utilization. The number of plumbing fixtures located within the 
required toilet facilities shall be provided in accordance with the Illinois Plumbing Code. 
Employees shall be provided with toilet facilities in all occupancies. Employee toilet 
facilities shall either be separate or combined employee and public toilet facilities. 
 
Section 2902.3.1 Access is amended to add at the end of the third sentence "and the State 
of Illinois Accessibility Code". 
 
Section 2902.3.2 Location of toilet facilities in occupancies other than covered mall 
buildings is amended to delete the exception in its entirety. All other plumbing sections in 
chapter 29 are deleted in their entirety. All other plumbing requirements shall be 
referenced in the Illinois plumbing Code as adopted and amended by the Village of North 
Aurora. 
 
Chapter 30 
 
Section 3002.4 Elevator car to accommodate ambulance stretcher is deleted, and the 
following text added: Elevator service shall be provided in all buildings and structures 
two stories or greater in height, measured from the lowest level of fire department vehicle 
access. 
 

Exception:  One and two-family residences.  2 story apartments, townhomes, 
condos where there are no internal passageways or common hallways and all 
residences are accessible through exterior stairways, unless covered elsewhere in 
this Code. 



 
Section 3002.4.1 Elevator car requirements adds a new section to read: Elevator cars are 
to accommodate the ambulance stretcher.  In the buildings two stories in height or more, 
at least one elevator shall be of such a size and arrangement to accommodate a 24-inch by 
84-inch ambulance stretcher in the horizontal, open position and shall be identified by the 
international symbol for emergency medical services (Star of Life).  The symbol shall not 
be less than 3 inches high and shall be placed inside on both sides of the hoist doorframe.  
The inside handrail shall be set at the maximum thirty-six (36) inch height allowed under 
ADA standards to better accommodate the stretcher.  The cab size is to be minimum a 
5’x7’ platform and minimum 2500 lb. capacity with a 42” side slide door. 
 
Chapter 33 
 
Section 3305.1 Facilities required is amended to delete the language "International 
Plumbing Code" and insert in accordance with the “Illinois Plumbing Code.” 
 

15.06.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.06.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.06.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 

 
 
Chapter 15.08 ADOPTION OF THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL 
CODE 
 



15.08.010 Adoption.  There is hereby adopted by the Village of North Aurora for the purpose of 
establishing rules and regulations for the construction, alteration, removal, demolition, 
equipment, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of the buildings and structures, 
including permits and penalties, a building code known as the "International Residential Code, 
2021 Edition" with all subsequent amendments, and all its referenced standards.  The code is 
adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  Effective January 1, 2024, the 
provisions thereof shall be controlling in the construction of all one- and two-family dwellings 
and other structures therein contained within the corporate limits of the Village. One (1) copy of 
said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public use, inspection, and 
examination. 
 
15.08.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The sections of the International Residential 
Code, 2021 Edition listed below are hereby revised as follows: 

 
Chapter 1: 
Section 101.1 Title is amended to insert “The Village of North Aurora.” 
 
Section 103.1 is amended to read: Enforcement Agency.  The community development 
department shall be the agency in charge of the implementation, administration, and 
enforcement of the provisions of this code.  The building official shall be the Director of 
Community Development, or their designee as determined by chapter 2.28 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances.    
 
Section 105.2 Work exempt from permit is amended to delete Building numbers 1, 2, 3, 
4, 5, and 10. 
 
Section 105.7 Placement of permit is amended to read: The building permit job card shall 
be kept on the site of the work and be visible from the street until such time as a 
certificate of occupancy has been issued. 
 
Section l05.010 Construction Hours adds a new section to read: Construction may 
commence between the hours of 6:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. for Monday through Saturday 
and from 8:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. on Sunday. 
 
Section 106.1 Submittal documents is amended to read: Submittal documents consisting 
of construction documents, and other data shall be submitted in two or more sets, or in 
digital format where allowed by the building official, with each application for a permit.  
Construction documents shall be signed and stamped by an Illinois registered design 
professional for all new one- and two-family dwellings, townhouses, and all additions or 
alterations that require additional or changes to structural design. 
 



Section 106.1.4 Information for construction in flood hazard areas is amended to read: 
Buildings in flood hazard areas shall follow the requirements of Title 15, chapter 15.64 of 
the Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 106.2 Site plan is amended by deleting the first sentence and substitute to read as 
follows: "The construction documents submitted with the application for permit shall be 
accompanied by a site plan showing to scale the size and location of the proposed new 
construction/improvements, and existing structures on the site, distances from lot lines, 
the established street grades, the proposed finished grades, top of foundation, elevations 
at the property corners and any additional spot elevations required to indicate drainage 
patterns; and it shall be drawn in accordance with an accurate boundary survey by a 
registered Illinois Professional Land Surveyor." 
 
Section 106.2.1 Foundation Survey adds a new section.  Upon installation of the 
foundation, the permit holder shall submit a foundation survey indicating the top of 
foundation elevations and foundation distances to the lot lines drawn in accordance with 
an accurate boundary line survey by a registered Illinois Professional Land Surveyor.  
Foundation Survey must be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of 
framing onto a foundation.  
 
Section 106.4.1 As-Built Drawings adds a new section. As-built drawings shall be 
submitted upon completion of any new construction project showing the exact location of 
all public improvements, utility lines, top of foundation elevations and foundation 
distances to the lot lines, and final grading information drawn in accordance with an 
accurate boundary line survey by a registered Illinois Professional Land Surveyor.  As-
Built Drawings must include any major changes to the floor plan and major deviations or 
changes made as field changes or an approved design change from the original approved 
construction drawings. 
 
Section 108.2 Schedule of permit fees is amended to read: Where a permit is required, a 
fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 108.6 Work commencing before permit issuance is amended to read: any person 
who commences any work before obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to an 
additional fee in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 109.1.3 Floodplain inspections is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 
Section 109.5 Construction Site Maintenance adds a new section.  All construction sites 
and roads used to gain access to the construction site shall be maintained in a clean, safe, 
and sanitary manner. The site and access roads shall be free of mud, construction debris 



and be accessible to emergency vehicles twenty-four (24) hours seven (7) days a week. 
Failure to comply shall result in a stop work order posted on the property by the Building 
Official. 
 
Section 109.5.l Responsibility adds a new section. It shall be the responsibility of the 
general contractor to maintain the construction site and all access roads in accordance 
with section 109.5. 
 
Section 110.1 Use and change of occupancy is amended to delete exception 2. 
 
Section 110.3 Certificate issued is amended to delete items 7 and 8. 
 
Section 110.4 Temporary Occupancy is amended to read: The building official is 
authorized to issues a temporary certificate of occupancy before the completion of the 
entire work covered by the permit, provided that such portion or portions shall be 
occupied safely.  The building official shall set a time period during which the temporary 
certificate of occupancy is valid.  Temporary certificates of occupancy are subject to 
additional rules a set forth in chapter 15.52 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 112 Board of Appeals is deleted, and the following text added. Appeals shall be 
available as provided in Section 15.08.030 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 113.4 Violation penalties is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall violate a provision of this Code or shall fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who shall erect, construct, alter or repair a building or structure in 
violation of an approved plan or directive of the Building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this Code, shall be subjected to fines in 
accordance with Section 15.08.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 114.4 Failure to comply is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall continue any work in or about any building or structure after having been 
served with a stop work order, except such work as they may be directed to perform in 
order to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to fines in accordance 
with Section 15.08.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Chapter 2 
 
Section 202 Definitions is amended by adding the following definition: 
 
Bedroom: A conditioned room used for sleeping with four (4) dry walled walls, a door, 
and a closet, that shall be not less than seven (7) feet in any horizontal dimension, not less 



than seventy (70) square feet, a ceiling height of not less than seven (7) feet measured 
from the finished floor, electrical as required for bedrooms in the 2020 National 
Electrical Code, an emergency escape and rescue opening as required in the 2021 
International Residential Code, section R310.2., and mechanical ventilation as required in 
the 2021 International Residential Code, Chapter 16. 
 
Chapter 3 
 
Table 301.2 is amended to read: 

Ground 
Snow 
Load 

Wind 
Speed  

Seismic 
Design 

Category 

Weathering Frost 
Line 

Depth 

Termite Ice Barrier 
Underlayment 

Required 

Flood 
Hazard 

Air 
Freezing 

Index 

Mean 
Annual 
Temp 

30 107 B Severe 42” Moderate 
to Heavy 

Yes See 
local 
Ord. 
15.64 

2000 50 

 
Section 309.5 Fire sprinklers is amended to read: Private garages for townhouses shall be 
protected by fire sprinklers where the garage wall has been designed based on table 
R302.1(2), private garages for one- and two-family dwellings shall not be required to be 
protected by fire sprinklers, Note a. Where required by this section, sprinklers in garages 
shall be connected to an automatic sprinkler system that complies with Section P2904.  
Garage sprinklers shall be residential sprinklers or quick response sprinklers, designed to 
provide a density of 0.05 gpm/ft2.  Garage doors shall not be considered obstructions with 
respect to sprinkler placement. 
 
Section 313.2 is amended to read: One- and two- family dwellings automatic sprinkler 
systems.  An automatic sprinkler system shall not be required in one- and two-family 
dwellings. 
 
Chapter 4 
 
Section 401.1 Application is amended to read: The provisions of this chapter shall control 
the design and construction of the foundation and foundation spaces for buildings.  In 
additions to the provisions of this chapter, the design and construction of foundations in 
flood hazard areas shall follow the requirements of Title 15, section 15.64 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances.  Wood foundations are prohibited. 
 
Sections 402.l Wood foundations through 402.1.2 Wood treatment are deleted in their 
entirety. 
 
Chapter 20 
 



Section M2004.1 General is amended to delete in its entirety and substitute in lieu thereof 
the following: “Water heaters used to supply both potable hot water and hot water for 
space heating shall be installed in accordance with Chapter 24, the manufacturer's 
installation instructions, the 2021 International Fuel Gas Code, and the Illinois Plumbing 
Code.” 
 
Section M2005.1 General shall be amended to delete the first and second sentence in 
their entirety and by substituting in lieu thereof the following: "Water heaters shall be 
installed in accordance with Chapter 24, the manufacturer's installation instructions, the 
2021 International Fuel Gas Code and the Illinois Plumbing Code". 
 
Section M2005.3 Electric water heaters are amended to read: “Electric water heaters shall 
also be installed in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 2020 National 
Electrical Code.” 
 
Chapter 25 through 33 
 
Chapters 25 through 33 are amended by deleting in their entirety and by substituting in 
lieu thereof the following: “See the Illinois Plumbing Code as adopted and amended by 
the Village of North Aurora.” 
 
Chapter 34 through 43 
 
Chapters 34 through 43 are amended by deleting in their entirety and by substituting in 
lieu thereof the following: “See the 2020 National Electrical Code as adopted and 
amended by the Village of North Aurora.” 
 

15.08.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.08.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.08.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 



addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
 
Chapter 15.10  ADOPTION OF THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL EXISTING 
BUILDING CODE 
 
15.10.010 Adoption.  There is hereby adopted by the Village of North Aurora for the purpose of 
establishing rules and regulations for the construction, alteration, removal, demolition, 
equipment, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of the existing buildings and structures, 
including permits and penalties, an existing building code known as the “2021 International 
Existing Building Code” with all subsequent amendments, and all its referenced standards.  The 
code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  Effective January 1, 2024, 
the provisions thereof shall be controlling in the construction buildings and other structures 
therein contained within the corporate limits of the Village. One (1) copy of said code shall be 
kept available in the village clerk's office for public use, inspection, and examination. 
 
15.10.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The sections of the 2021 International 
Existing Building Code listed below are hereby revised as follows: 
 

Chapter 1: 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended to insert “The Village of North Aurora.” 
 
Section 103.1 is amended to read: Enforcement Agency.  The community development 
department shall be the agency in charge of the implementation, administration, and 
enforcement of the provisions of this code.  The building official shall be the Director of 
Community Development, or their designee as determined by chapter 2.28 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances.    
 
Section 105.2 Work exempt from permit is amended to delete Building number 1. 
 
Section 105.7 Placement of permit is amended to read: The building permit job card shall 
be kept on the site of the work and be visible from the street until such time as a 
certificate of occupancy has been issued. 
 
Section l05.08 Construction Hours adds a new section to read: Construction may 
commence between the hours of 6:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. for Monday through Saturday 
and from 8:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. on Sunday. 
 



Section 108.2 Schedule of permit fees is amended to read: Where a permit is required, a 
fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 104.4 Work commencing before permit issuance is amended to read: any person 
who commences any work before obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to an 
additional fee in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 109.3.10 Flood hazard documentation is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 
Section 110.2 Certificate issued is amended to delete items 7 and 8. 
 
Section 110.3 Temporary Occupancy is amended to read: The building official is 
authorized to issues a temporary certificate of occupancy before the completion of the 
entire work covered by the permit, provided that such portion or portions shall be 
occupied safely.  The building official shall set a time period during which the temporary 
certificate of occupancy is valid.  Temporary certificates of occupancy are subject to 
additional rules a set forth in chapter 15.52 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 112 Means of Appeals is deleted, and the following text added. Appeals shall be 
available as provided in Section 15.10.030 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 113.4 Violation penalties is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall violate a provision of this Code or shall fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who shall erect, construct, alter or repair a building or structure in 
violation of an approved plan or directive of the Building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this Code, shall be subjected to fines in 
accordance with Section 15.10.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 114.4 Failure to comply is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall continue any work in or about any building or structure after having been 
served with a stop work order, except such work as they may be directed to perform in 
order to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to fines in accordance 
with Section 15.10.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 

 
15.10.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 



referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.10.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.10.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
Chapter 15.12  ADOPTION OF THE 2020 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 
 
15.12.010 Adoption.  Effective January 1, 2024, there is hereby adopted by the Village of North 
Aurora for the purpose of establishing rules and regulations for the construction, alteration, 
removal, demolition, equipment, use and occupancy, location, and maintenance of buildings and 
structures, an electric code known as the 2020 National Electric Code (NFPA 70), with all 
subsequent amendments.  The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length 
herein.  One (1) copy of said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public 
use, inspection, and examination. 
 
15.12.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The sections of the 2020 National Electric 
Code listed below are hereby revised as follows: 
 

Article 230.2(F) Minimum Service adds a new section.  All panel board installations for 
new One- and Two-Family dwellings shall be a minimum of 200-ampere rated.  The main 
service disconnecting means (circuit breaker or fused switch) shall be 200-ampere rated. 
 
Article 230.43 Wiring Methods for 1000 Volts, Nominal, or Less is hereby amended to 
delete methods (1) through (20) and replace as follows: Service entrance conductors are 
to be installed in rigid metal conduit, intermediate metal conduit, or PVC. PVC allowed 
for underground use only and must comply with article 352.10(G). 
 
Article 230.70(A)(1) Readily Accessible Location is amended to read: The service 
disconnecting means shall be installed in a readily accessible location at the utility meter 
or at a point not more than five feet from the utility meter. 



 
Article 230.85 Emergency Disconnects is amended to replace “readily accessible outdoor 
location” with “readily accessible location at the utility meter or at a point not more than 
five feet from the utility meter.” 
 
Article 326 - Integrated Gas Spacer Cable: Type IGS is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 
Article 334 - Nonmetallic-Sheathed Cable: Types NM and NMC is amended to delete in 
its entirety.  
 
Article 338 - Service-Entrance Cable: Types SE and USE is amended to delete in its 
entirety. 
 
Article 362 - Electrical Nonmetallic Tubing: Type ENT is amended to delete in its 
entirety. 
 
Article 382 - Nonmetallic Extensions is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 
Article 394 - Concealed Knob-and-Tube Wiring is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 
Article 396 - Messenger Supported Wiring is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 
Article 398 - Open Wiring on Insulators is amended to delete in its entirety. 
Article 604.10 Manufactured Wiring Systems is amended to Delete exceptions and 
replace with the following text: manufactured wiring shall not be allowed in any 
concealed location as defined in Article 100 or outdoor locations. 
 
Article 604.100(3) Flexible Cord is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 
Article 605.6 Lighting Accessories is amended to add the following subsection after (C): 
(D) Task Lighting. Task lighting for office furnishing shall be individually fused. 

 
15.12.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.12.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 



15.12.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
 
Chapter 15.14  ADOPTION OF THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL 
CODE 
 
15.14.010 Adoption.  Effective January 1, 2024, there is hereby adopted by the Village of North 
Aurora for the purpose of establishing rules and regulations for the construction, alteration, 
removal, demolition, equipment, use and occupancy, location, and maintenance of buildings and 
structures, a mechanical code known as the 2021 International Mechanical Code, with all 
subsequent amendments.  The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length 
herein.  One (1) copy of said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public 
use, inspection, and examination. 
 
15.14.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The sections of the 2021 International 
Mechanical Code listed below are hereby revised as follows: 
 

Chapter 1: 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended to insert “The Village of North Aurora.” 
 
Section 103.1 is amended to read: Enforcement Agency.  The community development 
department shall be the agency in charge of the implementation, administration, and 
enforcement of the provisions of this code.  The building official shall be the Director of 
Community Development, or their designee as determined by chapter 2.28 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances.    
 
Section 109.2 Schedule of permit fees is amended to read: Where a permit is required, a 
fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 109.4 Work commencing before permit issuance is amended to read: any person 
who commences any work before obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to an 



additional fee in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 113.4 Failure to comply is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall continue any work in or about any building or structure after having been 
served with a stop work order, except such work as they may be directed to perform in 
order to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to fines in accordance 
with Section 15.14.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 114 Means of Appeals is deleted, and the following text added. Appeals shall be 
available as provided in Section 15.14.030 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 115.4 Violation penalties is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall violate a provision of this Code or shall fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who shall erect, construct, alter or repair a building or structure in 
violation of an approved plan or directive of the Building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this Code, shall be subjected to fines in 
accordance with Section 15.14.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Chapter 2: 
 
Section 201.3 Terms defined in other codes is amended to delete "International Plumbing 
Code" and insert in lieu thereof "Illinois Plumbing Code". 
 
Chapter 3: 
 
Section 301.11 Plumbing connections are amended to delete "International Plumbing 
Code" and insert in lieu thereof "Illinois Plumbing Code". 
 
Section 306.3 Appliances in attics is amended to delete the exceptions in its entirety.   
 
Section 306.4 Appliances under floors is amended to delete the exceptions in its entirety.   

 
15.14.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 



15.14.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.14.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
 
Chapter 15.16  ADOPTION OF THE ILLINOIS PLUMBING CODE 
 
15.16.010 Adoption.  There is hereby adopted by the Village of North Aurora for the purpose of 
establishing rules and regulations for the construction, alteration, removal, demolition, 
equipment, use and occupancy, location, and maintenance of buildings and structures, a 
plumbing code known as the Illinois Plumbing Code, with all subsequent amendments, as 
codified at 77 Ill. Adm. Code 890 et. seq., as the same is amended from time to time by the State 
of Illinois.  The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  One (1) 
copy of said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public use, inspection, 
and examination. 
 
15.16.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  None. 
 
15.16.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.16.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.16.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 



shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
 
Chapter 15.18 ADOPTION OF THE INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CODE 
 
15.18.010 Adoption.  There is hereby adopted by the Village of North Aurora for the purpose of 
establishing rules and regulations for public safety as it pertains to establishing rules and 
regulations for energy conservation for all buildings and structures, an energy conservation code 
known as the International Energy Code as adopted in the Illinois Energy Conservation Code as 
codified at 71 Ill. Adm. Code 600 et. seq., as the same is amended from time to time by the State 
of Illinois.  The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  One (1) 
copy of said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public use, inspection, 
and examination. 
 
15.18.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The sections of the International Energy 
Code listed below are hereby revised as follows: 
 

Chapter 1: 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended to insert “The Village of North Aurora.” 

 
Section 104.2 Schedule of permit fees is amended to read: Where a permit is required, a 
fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 

 
Section 109.4 Failure to comply is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall continue any work in or about any building or structure after having been 
served with a stop work order, except such work as they may be directed to perform in 
order to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to fines in accordance 
with Section 15.18.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 

 
Section 110 Means of Appeals is deleted, and the following text added. Appeals shall be 
available as provided in Section 15.18.030 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 

 
15.18.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 



administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.18.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.18.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
 
Chapter 15.20 ADOPTION OF THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE 
 
15.20.010 Adoption.  Effective January 1, 2024, there is hereby adopted by the Village of North 
Aurora for the purpose of establishing rules and regulations for the construction, alteration, 
removal, demolition, equipment, use and occupancy, location, and maintenance of buildings and 
structures, a Fuel Gas code known as the 2021 International Fuel Gas Code, with all subsequent 
amendments.  The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  One 
(1) copy of said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public use, 
inspection, and examination. 
 
15.20.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The sections of the 2021 International Fuel 
Gas Code listed below are hereby revised as follows: 
 

Chapter 1: 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended to insert “The Village of North Aurora.” 
 
Section 103.1 is amended to read: Enforcement Agency.  The community development 
department shall be the agency in charge of the implementation, administration, and 
enforcement of the provisions of this code.  The building official shall be the Director of 
Community Development, or their designee as determined by chapter 2.28 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances.    
 



Section 109.2 Schedule of permit fees is amended to read: Where a permit is required, a 
fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 109.4 Work commencing before permit issuance is amended to read: any person 
who commences any work before obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to an 
additional fee in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 113 Means of Appeals is deleted, and the following text added. Appeals shall be 
available as provided in Section 15.20.030 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 114 Board of Appeals is deleted in its entirety. 
 
Section 115.4 Violation penalties is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall violate a provision of this Code or shall fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who shall erect, construct, alter or repair a building or structure in 
violation of an approved plan or directive of the Building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this Code, shall be subjected to fines in 
accordance with Section 15.20.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 116.4 Failure to comply is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall continue any work in or about any building or structure after having been 
served with a stop work order, except such work as they may be directed to perform in 
order to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to fines in accordance 
with Section 15.20.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Chapter 2 
Section 201.3 Terms defined in other codes is amended to delete "International Plumbing 
Code" and substituting in lieu thereof "Illinois Plumbing Code". 
 
Chapter 3 
 
Section 301.6 Plumbing connections are amended to delete "International Plumbing 
Code" and insert in lieu thereof "Illinois Plumbing Code". 
 
Section 306.3 Appliances in attics is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 
Section 306.4 Appliances under floors is amended to delete in its entirety.   
 
Chapter 8 
 



Referenced Standards is amended to delete "International Plumbing code" and 
substituting in lieu thereof “Illinois Plumbing Code”. 

 
15.20.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.20.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.20.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
 
Chapter 15.22  ADOPTION OF THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY 
MAINTENANCE CODE 
 
15.22.010 Adoption.  Effective January 1, 2024, there is hereby adopted by the Village of North 
Aurora for the purpose of establishing rules and regulations for the maintenance of building, site, 
properties, structures and premises, including permits and penalties, a property maintenance code 
known as the 2021 International Property Maintenance Code, with all subsequent amendments.  
The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  One (1) copy of said 
code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public use, inspection, and 
examination. 
 
15.22.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions. The sections of the 2021 International 
Property Maintenance Code listed below are hereby revised as follows:  
 

Chapter 1: 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended to insert “The Village of North Aurora.” 



 
Section 102.3 Application of other codes is amended to read: Repairs, additions or 
alterations to a structure, or changes of occupancy, shall be done in accordance with the 
procedures and provisions of the International Building Code, International Existing 
Building Code, the International Energy Code as adopted in the Illinois Energy 
Conservation Code, International Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code, International 
Mechanical Code, International Residential Code, Illinois Plumbing Code, and NFPA 70.  
Nothing in this code shall be construed to cancel, modify or set aside any provision of the 
Village of North Aurora Zoning Code adopted as Title 17 of the Village of North Aurora 
Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 103 is deleted, and the following text added: Enforcement Agency.  The 
community development department shall be the agency in charge of the implementation, 
administration, and enforcement of the provisions of this code.  The code official shall be 
the Director of Community Development, or their designee as determined by chapter 2.28 
of the Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances.    
 
Section 104 is deleted, and the following text added: Fees.  Where a permit is required, a 
fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 107 Means of Appeals is deleted, and the following text added.  Appeals shall be 
available as provided in Section 15.22.030 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 

 
Section 108 Board of Appeals is deleted in its entirety. 

 
Section 109.4 Violation penalties is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall violate a provision of this Code or shall fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who shall erect, construct, alter or repair a building or structure in 
violation of an approved plan or directive of the Building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this Code, shall be subjected to fines in 
accordance with Section 15.22.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 110.4 Failure to comply is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall continue any work in or about any building or structure after having been 
served with a stop work order, except such work as they may be directed to perform in 
order to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to fines in accordance 
with Section 15.22.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 113.5 adds a new section to read as follows: Grading.  Within 15 days of any 
construction, building or premises that are demolished in accordance with the provisions 



of this code, the owner shall remove all debris from the demolition site and restore the 
site to its original grade. 
 
Chapter 2: 
 
Section 201.3 Terms defined in other codes is amended to read: Where terms are not 
defined in this code and are defined in the 2021 International Building Code, 2021 
International Residential Code, 2021 International Fire Code, Illinois Plumbing Code, 
2020 National Electrical Code, 2021 International Mechanical Code, 2021 International 
Fuel Gas Code, 2021 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code, 2021 International 
Energy Conservation Code and Title 17 of the Village of North Aurora code of 
ordinances, such terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them as stated in those codes. 
 
Section 202 Definitions is amended by adding the following definitions: 
 
Bedroom: A conditioned room used for sleeping with four (4) dry walled walls, a door, 
and a closet, that shall be not less than seven (7) feet in any horizontal dimension, not less 
than seventy (70) square feet, a ceiling height of not less than seven (7) feet measured 
from the finished floor, electrical as required for bedrooms in the 2020 National 
Electrical Code, an emergency escape and rescue opening as required in the 2021 
International Residential Code, section R310.2., and mechanical ventilation as required in 
the 2021 International Residential Code, Chapter 16. 
 
Noxious Weeds: Noxious weeds means any plant now or hereafter listed by the State of 
Illinois as a noxious weed pursuant to the Illinois Noxious Weed Act, 505 ILCS 100/1 et 
seq., any plant now or hereafter listed as an exotic weed by the Illinois Exotic Weed Act, 
525 ILCS 10/1 et seq., dandelions, poison ivy (Toxicendron Radicans), Poison Oak 
(Toxicendron Querico¬ folium) and Poison Sumac (Toxicendron Vemix). 
 
Chapter 3 
 
Section 302.3 Sidewalks and driveways is amended to read: Sidewalks, walkways, stairs, 
driveways, parking spaces, parking drive aisles, access roads and other similar areas shall 
be kept in a proper state of repair, and maintained free from hazardous conditions.   
 
Section 302.3.1 adds a new section to read: All parking lot striping, signage, traffic 
control devices, lights, drainage structures, utility structures, and other similar items shall 
be kept in a proper state of repair and be fully legible and operational at all times.   
 
Section 302.4 Weeds is amended by replacing the first sentence as follows: All premises 
and exterior property including right-of-way areas shall be maintained free from weeds or 
plant growth in excess of eight (8) inches. 
 



Section 304.14 shall be amended to include the following dates: "from April 1st to 
November 1st." 
 
Chapter 5 
 
All references to the International Plumbing Code shall be replaced with the Illinois 
Plumbing Code. 
 
Chapter 6 
 
Section 602.2 Residential Occupancies is amended to read: Dwellings shall be provided 
with heating facilities capable of maintaining a room temperature of sixty-eight (68) 
Fahrenheit in all habitable rooms, bathrooms, and toilet rooms when the temperature is 
above negative four Fahrenheit (-4) degrees outside. Cooking appliances shall not be 
used to provide space heating to meet the requirements of this section. 
 
Section 602.3 Heat Supply is amended by adding the following dates "from October 1st 
to May 31st”. 
 
Exceptions l and 2 are deleted in its entirety. 
 
Section 602.4 shall be amended by adding the following dates: "from October 1st to May 
31st". 
 
Chapter 8 
 
Referenced Standards is amended to delete all references to the "ICC Electric Code" and 
substitute in lieu thereof the following: "The 2020 National Electrical Code as adopted 
and amended by the Village". 
 
Delete all references to the "International Plumbing Code" and substitute in lieu thereof 
the following: "Illinois Plumbing Code as adopted and amended by the Village." 
 
Delete all references to the "International Zoning Code" and substitute in lieu thereof the 
following: "North Aurora Zoning Ordinance as adopted and amended by the Village of 
North Aurora." 
 
Appendix B Board of Appeals is amended to delete in its entirety. 
 

15.22.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 



referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.22.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.22.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 
compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
 
Chapter 15.24  ADOPTION OF THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL SWIMMING POOL 
& SPA CODE 
 
15.24.010 Adoption.  Effective January 1, 2024, there is adopted by the Village for the purpose 
of establishing rules and regulations for the construction, alteration, removal, demolition, 
equipment, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of swimming pools and Spas, 
including permits and penalties, a swimming pool and spa code known as the 2021 International 
Swimming Pool and Spa Code including the ICC-7.  The code is adopted and incorporated as 
fully as if set out at length herein.  One (1) copy of said code shall be kept available in the village 
clerk's office for public use, inspection, and examination. 
 
15.24.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The sections of the 2021 International 
Swimming Pool and Spa Code listed below are hereby revised as follows: 

 
Chapter 1: 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended to insert “The Village of North Aurora.” 
 
Section 103 is deleted, and the following text added: Enforcement Agency.  The 
community development department shall be the agency in charge of the implementation, 
administration, and enforcement of the provisions of this code.  The code official shall be 
the Director of Community Development, or their designee as determined by chapter 2.28 
of the Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 



Section 108.2 Schedule of permit fees is amended to read: Where a permit is required, a 
fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of 
North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 108.4 Work commencing before permit issuance is amended to read: any person 
who commences any work before obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to an 
additional fee in accordance with Title 15 of the Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 111 Means of Appeals is deleted, and the following text added.  Appeals shall be 
available as provided in Section 15.24.030 of Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 

 
Section 112 Board of Appeals is deleted in its entirety. 

 
Section 113.4 Violation penalties is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall violate a provision of this Code or shall fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof or who shall erect, construct, alter or repair a building or structure in 
violation of an approved plan or directive of the Building official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provisions of this Code, shall be subjected to fines in 
accordance with Section 15.24.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 114.4 Failure to comply is amended to read: Any person, firm, corporation or 
entity who shall continue any work in or about any building or structure after having been 
served with a stop work order, except such work as they may be directed to perform in 
order to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to fines in accordance 
with Section 15.24.050 of Village of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
Chapter 2: 
 
Section 201.3 Terms defined in other codes is amended to read: Where terms are not 
defined in this code and are defined in the 2021 International Building Code, 2021 
International Residential Code, 2021 International Fire Code, Illinois Plumbing Code, 
2020 National Electrical Code, 2021 International Mechanical Code, 2021 International 
Fuel Gas Code, 2021 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code, 2018 International 
Energy Conservation Code and Title 17 of the Village of North Aurora code of 
ordinances, such terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them as stated in those codes. 
 
Chapter 3 
 
Section 302.5 Backflow protection is amended to replace International Plumbing Code 
with Illinois Plumbing Code. 
 



Section 302.6 Wastewater discharge is amended to replace International Plumbing Code 
with Illinois Plumbing Code. 
 
Section 304 Flood hazard areas is amended to read: Buildings in flood hazard areas shall 
follow the requirements of Title 15, chapter 15.64 of the Village of North Aurora Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
Section 305.1 General is amended to read: The provisions of this section shall apply to 
the design of barriers for restricting entry into areas having pools and spas.  All new in 
ground pools must have a barrier fence in accordance with the provisions of this section, 
regardless of the existence of a powered safety cover. 
 
Section 305.2.4 Mesh Fence as a Barrier shall be deleted in its entirety. 
 
Section 307.1.4 Accessibility is amended to read: An Accessible route to public pools and 
spas shall be provided in accordance with the Illinois Accessibility Code. 
 
Chapter 11 
 
Referenced Standards is amended by deleting "International Plumbing Code" and by 
substituting in lieu thereof the following: "Illinois Plumbing Code as adopted by the 
Village." 

 
15.24.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.24.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.24.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to file suit to compel the demolition, repair, or enclosure 
of work, buildings, or structures in violation of this Chapter, to obtain an injunction requiring 
compliance with this Chapter or to obtain the recovery of costs incurred by the Village in causing 



compliance with this Chapter, all as provided for by 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1 et. Seq. of the Illinois 
Municipal Code. 
 
 
Chapter 15.26 ADOPTION OF THE ILLINOIS ACCESSIBILITY CODE 
 
15.26.010 Adoption.  There is hereby adopted by the Village of North Aurora for the purpose of 
establishing rules and regulations for accessibility to all buildings, premises, site and 
appurtenances, an accessibility code known as the Illinois Accessibility Code as codified at 71 
Ill. Adm. Code 400 et. seq., as the same is amended from time to time by the State of Illinois.  
The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  One (1) copy of said 
code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public use, inspection, and 
examination. 
 
15.26.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  None 
 
15.26.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken or any administrative decision made by any village personnel charged with the 
administration, enforcement or application of any of the provisions of this Chapter or of any 
referenced code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter shall be taken to 
and heard by the Village Administrative Hearing Officer pursuant to Section 2.72 of the Village 
of North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 
 
15.26.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, each day a 
violation occurs or continues shall be deemed a separate violation. 
 
15.26.050 Penalties.  Any person, firm, corporation, or entity who violates any provision of this 
Chapter shall, in addition to any other fines, penalties, fees or remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Code or in applicable law, be subject to a fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor 
more than one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for each violation. Each day on which a violation 
shall continue to exist shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense under this Chapter. In 
addition, the Village shall have the right to refer any violations to the Attorney General for 
enforcement under section 6 of the Environmental Barriers Act [410 ILCS 25]. 
 
 
Chapter 15.28 ADOPTION OF THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 
 
15.28.010 Adoption.  Effective January 1, 2024, there is hereby adopted by the Village of North 
Aurora for the purpose of establishing rules and regulations for fire protection to all buildings, 
premises, site and appurtenances, a fire code known as the 2021 International Fire Code with all 
subsequent amendments.  The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length 



herein.  One (1) copy of said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office for public 
use, inspection, and examination. 
 
15.28.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The Additions, Amendments, and Deletions 
made to this Code by the North Aurora Fire Protection District are hereby adopted by reference.  
Such Additions, Amendments, and Deletions shall be applicable to all permits issued within the 
municipal boundaries of the Village of North Aurora.  Enforcement and inspections shall be 
conducted in conformance with the provisions of the Intergovernmental Agreement between the 
Village of North Aurora and the North Aurora Fire Protection District.  
 
15.28.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 
taken, or any administrative decision made shall be to the North Aurora Fire Protection District 
Board of Trustees.   
 
15.28.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, violations 
shall be set forth by the North Aurora Fire Protection District Board of Trustees, as amended 
from time to time.   
 
15.28.050 Penalties.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, Penalties shall 
be set forth by the North Aurora Fire Protection District Board of Trustees, as amended from 
time to time. 
 
 
Chapter 15.30 ADOPTION OF NATIONAL FIRE CODES NFPA CODES 10-1194 
 

15.30.010 Adoption.  Effective January 1, 2024, there is hereby adopted by the Village of North 
Aurora for the purpose of establishing rules and regulations for fire protection to all buildings, 
premises, site and appurtenances, a fire code known as the “National Fire Codes” NFPA Codes 
10-1194 with all subsequent amendments.  The code is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set 
out at length herein.  One (1) copy of said code shall be kept available in the village clerk's office 
for public use, inspection, and examination. 
 
15.30.020 Additions, Amendments, and Deletions.  The Additions, Amendments, and Deletions 
made to this Code by the North Aurora Fire Protection District are hereby adopted by reference.  
Such Additions, Amendments, and Deletions shall be applicable to all permits issued within the 
municipal boundaries of the Village of North Aurora.  Enforcement and inspections shall be 
conducted in conformance with the provisions of the Intergovernmental Agreement between the 
Village of North Aurora and the North Aurora Fire Protection District.  
 
15.30.030 Appeals.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Chapter or of any referenced 
code or standard adopted by reference by any section of this Chapter, any appeal of any action 



taken, or any administrative decision made shall be to the North Aurora Fire Protection District 
Board of Trustees.   
 
15.30.040 Violations.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, violations 
shall be set forth by the North Aurora Fire Protection District Board of Trustees, as amended 
from time to time.   
 

15.30.050 Penalties.  Notwithstanding any provisions in the code adopted herein, Penalties shall 
be set forth by the North Aurora Fire Protection District Board of Trustees, as amended from 
time to time. 

 

Chapter 15.32 RESERVED 

Chapter 15.34 RESERVED 

Chapter 15.36 RESERVED 

Chapter 15.38 RESERVED 



 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 
FROM: NATHAN DARGA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
SUBJECT: ZONING CODE TEXT AMENDMENTS  
AGENDA: DECEMBER 4, 2023, VILLAGE BOARD AGENDA 

 
ITEM 
 
Amending Title 17 of the North Aurora Code of Ordinances Regarding Administrative 
Procedures, Nonconformities, and Other Corrections and Clarifications 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Village of North Aurora maintains a Zoning Ordinance, which is found in Title 17 of the Code 
Ordinances (North Aurora’s Municipal Code). Staff reviews the Village’s Zoning Ordinance on an 
ongoing basis to ensure it is consistent with how the Village enforces the Ordinance and is up to 
date with the best practices for planning and zoning. The Community Development Department 
has identified certain sections in multiple chapters of the Village’s Zoning Ordinance, where text 
amendments are recommended for the best interests of the Village. The proposed text amendment 
sections are summarized below and relate to administrative procedures, nonconformities, and 
other corrections and clarifications.  
 
The proposed text amendment sections in Title 17 (Zoning) include: 
 

• Chapter 3.4 – updating Notice of Public Hearing signage content requirements.  

• Chapter 4.5 – removing redundant language regarding the Village’s Temporary Certificate 
of Occupancy process. 

• Chapter 7.3 – removing provisions for average setback line for lots in residential 
subdivisions.  

• Chapter 12.1 – moving nonconforming minimum lot size and lot width provisions to Chapter 
15.5 nonconformities lots of record section and removing redundant language regarding 
obstruction of watercourse channels in the Village. 

• Chapter 15.5 – amending nonconformities lots of record section with updated minimum lot 
size and lot width provisions. 

• Chapter 16.2 – adding interpretation language for the word “should” and adding rounding 
definitions for fractions and decimals.  

The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on the proposed changes at their 11-7-23 
meeting.  They recommended approval of the proposed changes.  The Village Board reviewed the 
proposed changes at their 11-20-23 Committee of the Whole meeting. 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 1 of 6 Pages 

  
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
Ordinance No. ___________________ 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE NORTH AURORA CODE OF 
ORDINANCES REGARDING ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES, NONCONFORMITIES, 

AND OTHER CORRECTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS  
 
 
 

Adopted by the 
Board of Trustees and President 
of the Village of North Aurora 

this ____ day of __________, 2023 
 

 
 

Published in Pamphlet Form 
by authority of the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 
this ____ day of __________, 2023 

by ________________________________. 
 
 
 
 

Signed _____________________________________ 
 
 
 

 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 2 of 6 Pages 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO._________________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE NORTH AURORA CODE OF 
ORDINANCES REGARDING ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES, NONCONFORMITIES, 

AND OTHER CORRECTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS  
 

(Petition #23-05; Text Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance) 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora maintains a Zoning Ordinance which is found in Title 
17 of the Code of Ordinances North Aurora, Illinois; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Community Development Director has identified and recommends text 
amendments to the Zoning Ordinance as set forth herein; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider text amendments to the Zoning Ordinance has been 
conducted by the Village of North Aurora Plan Commission on November 7, 2023 pursuant to appropriate 
and legal notice; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission has filed its recommendations with the President and Board 
of Trustees recommending approval of the text amendments described herein; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees adopt the findings and recommendations of the 
Plan Commission as reasonable, consistent with the general goals and purposes of the Zoning Code and 
determine they are in the best interests of the Village. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the 
Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

 
 

SECTION 1:  The recitals set forth above are adopted and incorporated herein as the material 
findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 

 
SECTION 2: Title 17, Chapter 3, Section 3.4, Figure 3-1: Posted Sign Notice Content, of the 

Code of North Aurora, Illinois is hereby amended to read as follows: 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 3 of 6 Pages 

 

 
SECTION 3: Title 17, Chapter 4, Section 4.5D, of the Code of North Aurora, Illinois is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 
 
D. Temporary Certificate of Occupancy. 

1. Where a portion of a building may be safely occupied while pending completion of the 

remainder of the building, the Community Development Director may issue a temporary 

occupancy permit to allow the premises to be occupied for the proposed use. Such permit 

shall become final only upon full compliance with this Ordinance and the Village Code, 

and approval by the Community Development Director. The temporary certificates of 

occupancy process is addressed under Chapter 15.52.070: Temporary Occupancy, of the 

North Aurora Municipal Code. 

2. Off-street parking and loading facilities required by this chapter shall be completed prior 

to the issuance of a temporary certificate of occupancy for the use they serve. If weather 

conditions do not permit such completion, the Community Development Director may 

issue a temporary occupancy permit. The off-street parking and loading facilities shall be 

completed prior to the issuance of the final occupancy permit. 

 
SECTION 4: Title 17, Chapter 7, Section 7.3, of the Code of North Aurora, Illinois is hereby 

amended for the title paragraph to read as follows, with the text of the table to remain unchanged: 
 
Table 7-2: Residential District Yard and Bulk Regulations establishes yard and bulk regulations 
for the residential districts. 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Location of Hearing: 
Date and Time of Hearing: 
Subject Property Address: 
Description of Requests: 
Petition Number: 
 
For further information contact the Village of North Aurora Community 
Development Department at (630) 897-1457 or at 25 E. Main Street, North 
Aurora, IL 60542 or at www.northaurora.org  
 

http://www.northaurora.org/


     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 4 of 6 Pages 

 
SECTION 5: Title 17, Chapter 12, Section 12.1H, of the Code of North Aurora, Illinois is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 
 
H. Obstruction of Watercourse Channels. To prevent encroachment upon, or constriction of, river 

or creek channels, and thereby avoid obstruction to the natural conveyance of water flow in 

such rivers, creeks, and other natural watercourses, there shall not be placed, erected, or 

located within the banks of such watercourses any building or structure, pier or marina, or 

retaining or revetment wall, except as permitted in Title 15, Chapter 15.64 of the Village of 

North Aurora Code of Ordinances. 

 
SECTION 6: Title 17, Chapter 12, Section 12.1I, of the Code of North Aurora, Illinois is hereby 

amended to delete in its entirety.   
 
 
SECTION 7: Title 17, Chapter 15, Section 15.5 – Nonconforming lots of record, of the Code of 

North Aurora, Illinois is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
15.5 – Nonconforming lots of record. 

This section regulates lots of record, existing on the effective date of this Ordinance, which do not 

conform to the lot area or lot width requirements of the district in which they are located. No 

nonconforming lot of record may be improved except in compliance with this section. 

A. Minimum Lot Size and Lot Width. 

1. Every building hereafter erected on a lot or parcel of land created subsequent to the 

effective date of this ordinance shall provide a zoning lot in accordance with the lot size 

and lot width requirements of the district within which it is located.  

2. In any residence district, on a lot of record on the effective date of this ordinance, a single-

family dwelling may be established regardless of the size or width of the lot, provided all 

other requirements of this ordinance are complied with provided it was a legal lot at the 

time of platting.  

3. No division, transfer or conveyance of a parcel shall be made which leaves the remaining 

lot(s) with lot width or lot area below the requirements of this Ordinance.  

4. No building permit shall be issued for the use of any lot, or portion of a lot, transferred or 

conveyed in violation of this section. 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 5 of 6 Pages 

B. Lots of Record Held in Common Ownership. Minimum Lot Size and Lot Width. If on the 

effective date of this Ordinance, in situations where there are two or more lots of record with 

continuous frontage in single ownership, and one or more of the lots having contiguous 

frontage does not meet the requirements for lot width or lot area as established by this 

Ordinance, the land so involved shall be considered to be a single undivided parcel for the 

purposes of this Ordinance. No portion of said parcel shall be used, transferred or conveyed 

which does not meet the lot width and lot area requirements established by this Ordinance. 

  
SECTION 8: Title 17, Chapter 16, Section 16.2 - Interpretation, of the Code of North Aurora, 

Illinois is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
16.2 - Interpretation. 

The language set forth in the text of this Ordinance shall be interpreted in accordance with the 

following rules of construction: 

A. The singular number includes the plural, and the plural the singular. 

B. The present tense includes the past and future tenses, and the future tense includes the 

present. 

C. The word "shall" is mandatory, the word "may" is permissive, the word “should” is 

suggestive. 

D. Both of the terms "shall not" and "may not" are prohibiting. 

E. The masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter. 

F. Whenever a defined word or term appears in the text of this Ordinance, its meaning shall 

be construed as set forth in the definition. Words not defined shall be interpreted in 

accordance with definitions found in Merriam-Webster's Dictionary.  

G. Minimum Requirements: When a regulation is expressed in terms of a minimum 

requirement, any fractional result of 0.5 or more must be rounded up to the next 

consecutive whole number.   

H. Maximum Limits: When a regulation is expressed in terms of maximum limits, any 

fractional result will be rounded down to the next lower whole number. 

I. All Other Fractions or Decimals: When measurements of a number results in a fractional 

number, any fractional result of 0.5 or more must be rounded up to the next consecutive 

whole number. Any fractional result of less than 0.5 may be rounded down to the previous 

consecutive whole number. 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 6 of 6 Pages 

 
SECTION 9: If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 

this Ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective 
by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance, or any part thereof. The Village Board of Trustees hereby declares 
that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, 
sentences, clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional, invalid or ineffective. 

 
SECTION 10:  This Ordinance shall take immediate full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval, publication and such other acts as required by law.  
 
 
 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

this ____ day of ___________, 2023 A.D. 
 
 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 

______ day of ________________, 2023, A.D.  
 
 
Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 
Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 
 
 
Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois this _____ day of ___________, 2023, A.D. 
 

 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Mark Gaffino, Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________   
Jessi Watkins, Village Clerk 



 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  
FROM: NATHAN DARGA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
SUBJECT: 840 ICE CREAM DRIVE SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #46 
AGENDA: DECEMBER 4, 2023 REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

 

ITEM 
An Ordinance Proposing the Establishment of Special Service Area No. 46 (840 Ice Cream 
Drive Development) In the Village of North Aurora. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The building on the north side of Ice Cream Drive developed by Transwestern (950 Ice Cream 
Drive) was approved in 2021 (ORD 21-08-16-04).  The building is now substantially complete.  
As part of the approval, the developer was required to establish a method for the long-term 
maintenance of the stormwater detention area.  Additionally, a back up Special Service Area 
(SSA) was to be established in case the private property owners fail to maintain the pond and 
the Village has to do the work.  This ordinance proposing the establishment of the SSA starts 
the process for setting up the back up SSA.  A Public Hearing will be scheduled for the next 
Board meeting, 12-18-23, on the establishment of the SSA.   
 



 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
Ordinance No. ___________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________  
 

AN ORDINANCE PROPOSING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF  
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 46  

(840 ICE CREAM DRIVE DEVELOPMENT) 
IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Adopted by the 
Board of Trustees and President 
of the Village of North Aurora 

this ____ day of __________, 2023 
 

 
 

Published in Pamphlet Form 
by authority of the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 
this ____ day of __________, 2023 

by ________________________________. 
 
 
 
 

Signed _____________________________________ 
 
 
 

  



49558/1 

2 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROPOSING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF  
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 46  

(840 ICE CREAM DRIVE DEVELOPMENT) 
IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
WHEREAS, a planned development was approved by the Village Board on August 16, 2021, by Ordinance 

No. 21-08-16-4 (the “PUD”) for property legally described in the document attached hereto and referenced herein as 

Exhibit “A” and identified by PIN numbers 15-05-401-004, 15-05-401-007, 15-05-401-008, and 15-05-401-009 (the 

“Property”), and that property has been developed as an I-2 General Industrial Planned Development (the 

“Development”) in the Village of North Aurora (the “Village”); and 

 WHEREAS, a Detention Pond and Stormwater Drainage Easement Agreement dated August 31, 2021, and 

recorded September 9, 2021, as document No. 2021K068693 (the “Agreement) has been approved and recorded in 

lieu of an owners’ association that is binding on future owners in the Development as required by the PUD; and 

 WHEREAS, the PUD and Agreement identify certain special improvements including stormwater detention 

and retention basins, stormwater sewer lines directly serving such basins, and surface drainage facilities (the 

“Common Facilities”) as more specifically described hereinbelow that remain under private ownership, that serve the 

Development, but which tie into the area and regional stormwater drainage system; and 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement provides for the maintenance of the Common Facilities and shared expense of 

that maintenance; and 

 WHEREAS, the PUD requires the establishment of a Special Service Area as a backup source of funding 

for purposes of maintenance, repair and replacement of the Common Facilities as provided in the PUD; and 

 WHEREAS, this ordinance is being proposed to create Special Service Area No. 46 (840 Ice Cream Drive 

Development) (“SSA #46”) providing for the imposition and levy a tax from the properties within SSA #46 to be 

levied as needed, but only as a backup source of funding for the special services defined herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the services to be provided are special and unique to the Development and are in addition to 

services generally provided throughout the Village, including the maintenance, repair, restoration and replacement 

of the stormwater detention and retention basins, stormwater sewer lines directly serving such basins, and surface 

drainage facilities, including dredging, shoreline restoration, and plantings in keeping with the local and state laws, 

codes and regulations, and any administrative and related costs associated therewith; and 

 WHEREAS, the owners of the Property in the Development shall be primarily responsible for the 

maintenance, repair, restoration, and replacement of the Common Facilities, and the SSA #46 is only intended as a 

backup source of funding for the services that are the owners’ primary obligations; and 



49558/1 

3 

 WHEREAS, the Village has the authority to levy and impose taxes on property in special service areas to 

cover the cost of the special services to be provided pursuant to Article VII, Section 7, Part (6) of the 1970 Illinois 

constitution and 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et. seq. of the Illinois Municipal Code.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of North 

Aurora as follows:   

 

1. The corporate authorities find as a fact the recitals set forth above. 

2. That a Special Service Area is hereby proposed for the 840 Ice Cream Drive Development as a 

backup source of funding for the mowing of grass, fertilization and weed control; cleaning, maintenance, repair, 

restoration and replacement of the stormwater detention and retention basins, stormwater sewer lines directly serving 

such basins, and surface drainage facilities, including such stormwater detention elements on Lot 3, including Parcel 

4 thereof, including repair, flushing, replacement and ongoing maintenance of the Common Facilities including 

reimbursement of interest at the rate of eight percent (8%) per annum from the date of expenditure until the date of 

collection by the Village of the SSA funding and a ten percent (10%) administrative fee “collectively the “Special 

Services”).   

3. That the time and place for a hearing on the proposed SSA #46 for the 840 Ice Cream Drive 

Development has been fixed within sixty (60) days after the adoption of this Ordinance as required by law for 

December 18, 2023. 

4. That the Special Service Area tax being proposing will be imposed at a rate or amounts sufficient to 

produce revenues required to provide funding for the Special Services, but in no event shall it be more than fifty cents 

($0.50) per one hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation, as equalized, of the taxable property, excluding all 

taxable personal property, per year for property located in the SSA.   

5. That special service area taxes shall be levied to fund the Special Services as needed in the 

determination of the Village if the Common Facilities are not maintained as required by state and local laws, 

regulations, and codes in keeping with sound engineering practices.  

6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval by the 

President and passage of time as provided by law.   

 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ day of 
_____________, 2023, A.D. 
 
 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this   
_____ day of _________________, 2023, A.D. 



49558/1 

4 

 
 Jason Christensen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 
 Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 
 Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Salazar  _________  
 
  

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane 
County, Illinois this                     day of _________ 2023, A.D. 

 

 
      ______________________________________ 
      Village President Mark Gaffino 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk Jesse Watkins 
 
\\192.168.39.6\elc\Shared\Documents (R)\Secretary\Clients - Municipal\VONA\Special Service Area\Ice Cream Drive SSA\Drafts\Ord. Proprosing Ice Cream Drive SSA.docx 

  



49558/1 

5 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
AN ORDINANCE PROPOSING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF  

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 46 IN THE VILLAGE 
OF NORTH AURORA (840 ICE CREAM DRIVE DEVELOPMENT 

 
PARCEL 1: 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 21 
SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER, 175.02 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE CONSTRUCTED 175.00 FEET 
SOUTHERLY OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE 
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 2717.85 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE CONSTRUCTED 30 FEET EASTERLY OF AND PARALLEL 
(OR CONCENTRIC) WITH THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 14 (RANDALL ROAD); THENCE 
SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID PARALLEL (OR CONCENTRIC) LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE 
LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5699.65 FEET FOR AN ARC DISTANCE OF 96.08 FEET TO A POINT OF 
TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 05 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID PARALLEL 
LINE, 531.53 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID PARALLEL (OR 
CONCENTRIC) LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5759.58 FEET 
FOR AN ARC DISTANCE OF 262.50 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF OBERWEIS DAIRY SUBDIVISION 
AS RECORDED JANUARY 6, 1995 AS DOCUMENT 95K001238 IN KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS; THENCE 
NORTH 89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
SUBDIVISION, 1549.44 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 
23 MINUTES 21 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE MOST EASTERLY 
LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION, 161.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 
CONSTRUCTED 420 FEET NORTHERLY OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SERVICE 
MASTER SUBDIVISION (AS MEASURED ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE AND SAID EASTERLY LINE 
EXTENDED NORTHERLY); THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST, PARALLEL 
WITH SAID NORTHERLY LINE, 412.24 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF UNIT TWO, NORTH AURORA 
INDUSTRIAL PARK AS RECORDED JULY 28, 1975 AS DOCUMENT 1334883; THENCE NORTH 00 
DEGREES 23 MINUTES 53 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE WEST LINE, 
180.07 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID UNIT TWO; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 
32 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE, 665.55 FEET TO SAID EAST LINE OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 21 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID 
EAST LINE, 549.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, IN 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
 
EXCEPT THAT PART DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: THAT PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 5, 
TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 5; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER, 175.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF 
INTERSECTION WITH A LINE CONSTRUCTED 175.00 FEET SOUTHERLY OF AND PARALLEL WITH  
THE NORTH LINE OF  SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 
SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 2717.46 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH 
A LINE CONSTRUCTED 30 FEET EASTERLY OF AND PARALLEL (OR CONCENTRIC) WITH THE 
CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 14 (RANDALL ROAD); THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID 
PARALLEL (OR CONCENTRIC) LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 



49558/1 

6 

5699.65 FEET FOR AN ARC DISTANCE OF 96.13 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 05 
DEGREES 53 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 531.53 FEET TO A POINT OF 
CURVATURE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID PARALLEL (OR CONCENTRIC) LINE, BEING 
ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5759.65 FEET FOR AN ARC DISTANGE OF 
62.55 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, PARALLEL WITH THE 
NORTH LINE OF OBERWEIS DAIRY SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED JANUARY 6, 1995 AS DOCUMENT 
95K001238 IN KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 1260.60 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF LOT 4 THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, 200.00 FEET 
TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN SAID OBERWEIS DAIRY SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTH 
89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION 305.54 
FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 21 
SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE MOST EASTERLY LINE OF SAID 
SUBDIVISION, 161.30 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE CONSTRUCTED 420 FEET 
NORTHERLY OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SERVICE MASTER SUBDIVISION (AS 
MEASURED ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE AND SAID EASTERLY LINE EXTENDED NORTHERLY); 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST, PARALLEL WITH SAID NORTHERLY 
LINE, 412.30 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF UNIT TWO, NORTH AURORA INDUSTRIAL PARK AS 
RECORDED JULY 28, 1975 AS DOCUMENT 1334883; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 53 
SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE WEST LINE, 180.02 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID UNIT TWO; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE, 666.0 
FEET TO SAID EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 
21 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, 549.98 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
ALSO EXCEPT PROPERTY CONVEYED BY TRUSTEE'S DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 15, 2018 AS 
DOCUMENT 2018K007531 DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: THAT PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 
5, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 5, THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER, 175.02 FEET;  THENCE SOUTH  89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 SECONDS 
WEST, PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER, 2717.16 FEET TO A POINT 
0.30 FEET EASTERLY OF THE CENTER LINE OF RANDALL ROAD; THENCE SOUTHERLY CONCENTRIC 
WITH  THE CENTERLINE OF RANDALL ROAD, ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 5699.65 FEET FOR A DISTANCE OF 96.13 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 05 
DEGREES 53 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST, PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTERLINE 531.53 FEET TO A 
POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE SOUTHERLY PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTER LINE, ALONG A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5759.65 FEET FOR A DISTANCE OF 62.55 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF 
OBERWEIS DAIRY SUBDIVISION, 25.15 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89 
DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 138.16 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 09 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST, 28.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 86 DEGREES 04 
MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST, 140.00 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY, 36.00 FEET, ON THE ARC OF A 
CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5784.65 FEET HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 
05 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 36.00 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING, ALL IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
 
PARCEL 2: LOTS 2 AND 3 IN OBERWEIS DAIRY SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN PART OF 
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OFTHE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JANUARY 6, 1995 AS 
DOCUMENT 95K001238, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
 
PARCEL 3: 
 



49558/1 

7 

LOT 4 IN OBERWEIS DAIRY SUBDIVISION (EXCEPT THE EAST 241.00 FEET THEREOF), BEING A 
SUBDIVISION IN PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 
8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
JANUARY 6, 1995 AS DOCUMENT 95K001238, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS. 
 
PARCEL 4: 
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 5, THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 21 
SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER, 175.02 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES  18 SECONDS WEST, PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER, 2717.46 FEET TO A POINT 30 FEET EASTERLY OF THE CENTER LINE OF 
RANDALL ROAD; THENCE SOUTHERLY, CONCENTRIC WITH THE CENTERLINE OF RANDALL ROAD, 
ALONG CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5699.65 FEET FOR A DISTANCE OF 96.13 FEET 
TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 05 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST, PARALLEL 
WITH SAID CENTER LINE, 531.53 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE SOUTHERLY, 
PARALLEL WITH SAID CENTER LINE, ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5759.65 
FEET FORA DISTANCE OF 62.55 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, 
PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF OBERWEIS DAIRY SUBDIVISION 256.76 FEET FOR THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 83 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 42 SECONDS EAST, 243.83 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 82 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 58 SECONDS EAST, 74.57 FEET; THENCE NORTH 84 DEGREES 04 
MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, 116.55 FEET; THENCE NORTH 85 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 02 SECONDS 
EAST, 131.89 FEET; THENCE NORTH 85 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST, 58.47 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 88 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 06 SECONDS EAST, 9.28 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 50 DEGREES 55 
MINUTES 11 SECONDS EAST, 92.23 FEET TO SAID PARALLEL LINE; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 27 
MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 702.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
CONTAINING 704,782 SQUARE FEET OR 16.1796 ACRES 
 



 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
 
To:         Mark Gaffino, Village President & Board of Trustees 

Cc:     Steven Bosco, Village Administrator  

From:  Brandon Tonarelli, Assistant Public Works Director / Village Engineer  

Date:  November 21, 2023 

Re:         Approval to Award Orchard Gateway Blvd. Breakaway Modification 

Project 

 
The Village obtained federal funding for the installation of a traffic signal and road 
widening at the intersection of Orchard Gateway and Hansen, along with resurfacing 
the road from Orchard Road to Randall Road through the Kane County Council of 
Mayors (KKCOM) and Chicago Metropolitan Planning Agency (CMAP) in 2020 with 
partial funding from the federal Surface Transportation Project (STP) in the amount 
of $2,068,057.   
 
Due to the federal funding, the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) reviews 
all the design documents, plans, and existing project area.  They require everything 
to comply with IDOT requirements and it was determined the existing streetlight 
foundations along a majority of Orchard Gateway Boulevard do not have breakaway 
devices which are required based on the locations of the streetlights.  The breakaway 
devices allow the streetlight to detach from the concrete foundation when a vehicle 
collides with it, which is safer for occupants of the vehicles.   
 
IDOT is requiring the streetlight foundations be modified to be breakaway to use the 
federal funding.   
 
On November 21, 2023, one sealed bid was received for the Orchard Gateway Blvd. 
Breakaway Modification Project, as shown in the table below.   



COMPANY BID AMOUNT 
Utility Dynamics Corporation $75,000.00 

  
Utility Dynamics Corporation (Oswego, IL) was the low bidder in the amount of 
$75,000.00.  The project will be paid from the Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) Fund.  This specific 
project was not budgeted but should be completed prior to the next budget year to 
not affect the federal funding.  The fiscal year budget has $54,500 budgeted in the 
MFT fund for Streetlight Repairs and the Salt purchase from the MFT fund will be at 
least $85,000 under the budgeted amount.  There are sufficient funds within the MFT 
Fund to cover this expenditure.   
 
Village staff designed the improvement project and will be performing the 
construction inspection and administration of this project in house.   
 
Utility Dynamics Corporation has successfully completed projects in the Village of 
North Aurora in the past.  Village staff is recommending the award of the bid to Utility 
Dynamics Corporation in the amount of $75,000.00. 
 
 
 
 



























































































































 

 
Memorandum 
 

To:      Mark Gaffino, Village President & Board of Trustees 

Cc:  Steven Bosco, Village Administrator  

From: Brian Richter, Public Works Director  

 Brandon Tonarelli, Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer 

 Adam Hake, Water Superintendent 

Date: November 27, 2023 

Re:     Consideration of an Agreement to Design a New Elevated Water Storage Tank in 

an Amount Not to Exceed of $155,100. 

  
The Village had entered into a design contract for a 750,000 gallon elevated water storage 
tank in 2016 with Rempe-Sharpe & Associates.  The design was completed and bid for 
the first time in July of 2021, one bid was received in the amount of $3,900,000, which 
was approximately $1,100,000 over the Engineers’ Estimate.  Additionally, it did not 
comply with the Village’s Joint Apprenticeship Training Program certified by the U.S. 
Department of Labor requirement and was not awarded.  The project was bid for a second 
time in November of 2021 and no bids were received.   
 
The project was bid for a third time in February of 2022, which allowed the Village’s Joint 
Apprenticeship Training Program to be waived for the tank general contractor/bidder only 
due to the specialized nature of the work.  Their subcontractors still needed to comply 
with the requirement.  The Village received two bids, with the low bid in the amount of 
$4,119,900. The Village Board decided to not award the project due to the high project 
cost.   
 
The Village has been in the process of completing a Water Model and Water System 
Master Plan with Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (EEI).  During the course of these studies 
and along with obtaining water usage information from Aurora Packing for their 
expansion, it was determined that a 1,000,000 gallon elevated water storage tank would 
be the proper size to account for additional future development, as well as the current 
deficient storage.   With the change of tank size, a new set of plans and specifications are 
required to be designed.   
 
The Village has received a proposal from EEI for the design engineering services for the 
1,000,000 gallon elevated water storage tank.  EEI’s proposal to complete the scope of 
work in a not to exceed amount of $155,100, which includes $134,800 to be paid on an 



hourly basis and $20,300 for their electrical engineering subcontractor.  EEI would only 
be paid for their actual hours used.   
 
The Village has chosen to utilize Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (EEI) to perform the design 
engineering.  EEI has worked with the Village on numerous infrastructure and water 
system projects and studies.  EEI has extensive experience with the Village’s water 
system and has performed well on past projects.  They additionally have recent 
experience with designing and bidding elevated storage tanks.   
 
The project was not budgeted; however, the water fund has adequate funds for this work.  
It is beneficial to start design now, as the design takes approximately six months and 
construction takes a year and getting the elevated storage tank operational prior to a large 
water demand user coming online would be optimal.    Attached is a service agreement 
from EEI with the complete scope of services.   It is staff’s recommendation to enter into 
an agreement with EEI in an amount not to exceed $155,100.  



  
   

 

      November 24, 2023 
 
 
Mr. Brandon Tonarelli, PE, CFM 
Village Engineer 
Village of North Aurora 
25 East State Street 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
RE: Professional Services Agreement 

New Elevated Water Storage Tank (Design Engineering)  
 
Dear Mr. Tonarelli: 
 
In accordance with your request, enclosed please find our proposal for engineering 
services for the above referenced project.  Our proposed work items and costs are 
summarized in the attached Scope of Services and Estimate of Level of Effort and 
Associated Cost.  Also enclosed is the proposed project schedule.  We propose to provide 
our professional engineering services to complete the scope of work for in an a not to 
exceed amount of $155,100 which includes approximately $134,800 to be paid on an 
hourly basis EEI labor and an estimated $20,300 on an actual basis for all direct 
expenses.   
 
This work does not include any geotechnical work.  We are evaluating the existing 
geotechnical work to confirm that adequate information is provided for the best bidding 
environment.  If any additional geotechnical information is needed, then this effort will be 
proposed to the Village as an addition to the contract. 
 
We look forward to working with you and members of your staff on this project.  If you 
have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 

      Respectfully Submitted 

      ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC. 

 

      Michele L. Piotrowski, PE, LEED AP 
      Vice President 
 

pc: BPS, JAM, STD – EEI (via e-mail) 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                  CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 1 

 
Central Elevated Water Storage Tank (Design) 

Village of North Aurora 
Professional Services Agreement – Design Engineering 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the Village of North Aurora, hereinafter referred to 
as the "Village" or “OWNER” and Engineering Enterprises, Inc. hereinafter referred to as 
the "Contractor" or “ENGINEER” agrees as follows:  
 
A. Services:  
 
The ENGINEER shall furnish the necessary personnel, materials, equipment, and 
expertise to make the necessary investigations, analysis, and calculations along with 
exhibits, cost estimates, and narrative, to complete all necessary engineering services to 
the Village as indicated on the included Attachment B.  Services to be provided include 
professional engineering services for the design of a New Elevated Water Storage Tank. 
 
B. Term:   
 
Services will be provided beginning on the date of execution of this agreement and 
continuing, until terminated by either party upon 7 days written notice to the non-
terminating party or upon completion of the Services.  Upon termination the ENGINEER 
shall be compensated for all work performed for the Village prior to termination.  
 
C. Compensation and maximum amounts due to ENGINEER: 
 
ENGINEER shall receive as compensation for all work and services to be performed 
herein, an amount based on the Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost included 
in Attachment C.  Design Engineering will be paid for in a not to exceed amount of 
$155,100 which includes approximately $134,800 to be paid on an hourly basis EEI labor 
and an estimated $20,300 on an actual basis for all direct expenses.  The hourly rates for 
this project are shown in the attached 2023 Standard Schedule of Charges (Attachment 
E).  All payments will be made according to the Illinois State Prompt Payment Act and not 
less than once every thirty days.  
 
D. Changes in Rates of Compensation: 
 
In the event that this contract is designated in Section B hereof as an Ongoing Contract, 
ENGINEER, on or before February 1st of any given year, shall provide written notice of 
any change in the rates specified in Section C hereof (or on any attachments hereto) and 
said changes shall only be effective on and after May 1st of that same year. 
 
E. Ownership of Records and Documents: 
 
ENGINEER agrees that all books and records and other recorded information developed 
specifically in connection with this agreement shall remain the property of the Village. 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                  CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 2 

ENGINEER agrees to keep such information confidential and not to disclose or 
disseminate the information to third parties without the consent of the Village.  This 
confidentiality shall not apply to material or information, which would otherwise be subject 
to public disclosure through the freedom of information act or if already previously 
disclosed by a third party. Upon termination of this agreement, ENGINEER agrees to 
return all such materials to the Village. The Village agrees not to modify any original 
documents produced by ENGINEER without contractors consent.  Modifications of any 
signed duplicate original document not authorized by ENGINEER will be at OWNER’s sole 
risk and without legal liability to the ENGINEER. Use of any incomplete, unsigned 
document will, likewise, be at the OWNER’s sole risk and without legal liability to the 
ENGINEER. 
 
F. Governing Law:  
 
This contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Illinois.  Venue shall be in Kendall County, Illinois.  
 
G. Independent Contractor:   
 
ENGINEER shall have sole control over the manner and means of providing the work and 
services performed under this agreement. The Village’s relationship to the ENGINEER 
under this agreement shall be that of an independent contractor.  ENGINEER will not be 
considered an employee to the Village for any purpose.    
 
H. Certifications:   
 
Employment Status: The Contractor certifies that if any of its personnel are an employee 
of the State of Illinois, they have permission from their employer to perform the service.   
 
Anti-Bribery : The Contractor certifies it is not barred under 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes  
500/50-5(a) - (d) from contracting as a result of a conviction for or admission of bribery or  
attempted bribery of an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or any other state.   
 
Loan Default: If the Contractor is an individual, the Contractor certifies that he/she is not in 
default for a period of six months or more in an amount of $600 or more on the repayment 
of any educational loan guaranteed by the Illinois State Scholarship Commission made by 
an Illinois institution of higher education or any other loan made from public funds for the 
purpose of financing higher education (5 ILCS 385/3).  
 
Felony Certification: The Contractor certifies that it is not barred pursuant to 30 Illinois 
Compiled Statutes 500/50-10 from conducting business with the State of Illinois or any 
agency as a result of being convicted of a felony.   
 
Barred from Contracting :  The Contractor certifies that it has not been barred from  
contracting as a result of a conviction for bid-rigging or bid rotating under 720 Illinois 
Compiled Statutes 5/33E or similar law of another state.   
 
Drug Free Workplace:  The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the Drug Free 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                  CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 3 

Workplace Act (30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 580) as of the effective date of this contract.   
The Drug Free Workplace Act requires, in part, that Contractors, with 25 or more 
employees  certify and agree to take steps to ensure a drug free workplace by informing 
employees of the  dangers of drug abuse, of the availability of any treatment or assistance 
program, of  prohibited activities and of sanctions that will be imposed for violations; and 
that individuals  with contracts certify that they will not engage in the manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation,  possession, or use of a controlled substance in the 
performance of the contract.   
 
Non-Discrimination, Certification, and Equal Employment Opportunity : The Contractor  
agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 Illinois  
Compiled Statutes 5), the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
Section  504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the rules applicable to each. The equal 
opportunity clause of Section 750.10 of the Illinois Department of Human Rights Rules is 
specifically incorporated herein.  The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, 
entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as 
supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. Chapter 60).  The 
Contractor agrees to incorporate this clause into all subcontracts under this Contract.  
 
International Boycott:  The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any substantially owned 
affiliated company is participating or shall participate in an international boycott in violation 
of the provisions of the U.S. Export Administration Act of 1979 or the regulations of the 
U.S. Department of Commerce promulgated under that Act (30 ILCS 582).   
 
Record Retention and Audits:  If 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 500/20-65 requires the 
Contractor (and any subcontractors) to maintain, for a period of 3 years after the later of 
the date of completion of this Contract or the date of final payment under the Contract, all 
books and records relating to the performance of the Contract and necessary to support 
amounts charged to the Village under the Contract. The Contract and all books and 
records related to the Contract shall be available for review and audit by the Village and 
the Illinois Auditor General. If this Contract is funded from contract/grant funds provided by 
the U.S.  Government, the Contract, books, and records shall be available for review and 
audit by the Comptroller General of the U.S. and/or the Inspector General of the federal 
sponsoring agency. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to provide 
full access to all relevant materials.  
 
United States Resident Certification: (This certification must be included in all contracts 
involving personal services by non-resident aliens and foreign entities in accordance with  
requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Services for withholding and reporting 
federal  income taxes.) The Contractor certifies that he/she is a:   x  United States Citizen  
___ Resident Alien  ___ Non-Resident Alien  The Internal Revenue Service requires that 
taxes be withheld on payments made to non  resident aliens for the performance of 
personal services at the rate of 30%.   
 
Tax Payer Certification :  Under penalties of perjury, the Contractor certifies that its 
Federal Tax Payer Identification Number or Social Security Number is (provided 
separately)  and is  doing business as a (check one):  ___ Individual  ___ Real  Estate  
Agent  ___ Sole  Proprietorship  ___ Government  Entity     ___ Partnership  ___ Tax 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                  CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 4 

Exempt Organization (IRC 501(a) only)   x   Corporation  ___ Not for Profit Corporation  
___ Trust or Estate  ___ Medical and Health Care Services Provider Corp.   
 
 
I. Indemnification:   
 
ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless the Village and Village’s agents, servants, 
and employees against all loss, damage, and expense which it  may sustain or for which it 
will become liable on account of injury to or death of persons, or  on account of damage to 
or destruction of property resulting from the performance of work  under this agreement by 
ENGINEER or its Subcontractors, or due to or arising in any manner  from the wrongful 
act or negligence of ENGINEER or its Subcontractors of any employee of  any of them. In 
the event that the either party shall bring any suit, cause of action or counterclaim against 
the other party, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party the cost and 
expenses incurred to answer and/or defend such action, including reasonable attorney 
fees and court costs.  In no event shall the either party indemnify any other party for the 
consequences of that party’s negligence, including failure to follow the ENGINEER’s 
recommendations. 
 
 J. Insurance:   
 
The ENGINEER agrees that it has either attached a copy of all required insurance 
certificates or that said insurance is not required due to the nature and extent of the types 
of services rendered hereunder. (Not applicable as having been previously supplied) 
 
K. Additional Terms or Modification: 
 
The terms of this agreement shall be further modified as provided on the attachments. 
Except for those terms included on the attachments, no additional terms are included as a 
part of this agreement. All prior understandings and agreements between the parties are 
merged into this agreement, and this agreement may not be modified orally or in any 
manner other than by an agreement in writing signed by both parties.  In the event that 
any provisions of this agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall be valid and binding on the parties.  The list of attachments are 
as follows: 
 

Attachment A: Standard Terms and Conditions 
Attachment B: Scope of Services 
Attachment C:  Estimated Level of Effort and Associated Cost 

 Attachment D:  Anticipated Project Schedule  
 Attachment E: 2023 Standard Schedule of Charges  
 
L. Notices: 
 
All notices required to be given under the terms of this agreement shall be given mail, 
addressed to the parties as follows: 
 
 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                  CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 5 

 
 
 
For the Village:                                                   For the ENGINEER: 
 
Village Administrator and Village Clerk                       Engineering Enterprises, Inc. 
Village of North Aurora                                       52 Wheeler Road                                                          
25 East State Street                                      Sugar Grove Illinois 60554 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
  
 
Either of the parties may designate in writing from time-to-time substitute addresses or 
persons in connection with required notices. 
 
Agreed to this _____day of __________________, 2023. 
  
 
Village of North Aurora:                                          Engineering Enterprises, Inc.: 
  
 
_________________________________             ________________________________                      
                     Mark Gaffino                     Michele Piotrowski, PE, LEED AP 
                   Village President                                                       Vice President 

             
 
_________________________________             ________________________________                      
                     Jessi Watkins                                    Julie Morrison, PE 
                      Village Clerk                                                           Vice President 
   



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                   CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 6 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Attachment A 

 
Agreement:  These Standard Terms and Conditions, together with the Professional Services Agreement, constitute the entire 
integrated agreement between the OWNER and Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (EEI) (hereinafter “Agreement”), and take precedence 
over any other provisions between the Parties. These terms may be amended, but only if both parties consent in writing.  

Standard of Care:  In providing services under this Agreement, the ENGINEER will endeavor to perform in a matter consistent with 
that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under same circumstances in 
the same locality.  ENGINEER makes no other warranties, express or implied, written or oral under this Agreement or otherwise, in 
connection with ENGINEER’S service.  

Construction Engineering and Inspection:  The ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any contractor 
work, nor have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques sequences, or procedures of construction selected 
or used by any contractor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety of the site, nor for any failure of 
a contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work.  

The ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for contractor’s failure to furnish and 
perform the work in accordance with the contract documents.  

The ENGINEER is not responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or supplies, or any of their agents or 
employees or any other person at the site or otherwise furnishing or performing any work.  

Shop drawing and submittal review by the ENGINEER shall apply to only the items in the submissions and only for the purpose of 
assessing if upon installation or incorporation in the project work they are generally consistent with the construction documents.  
OWNER agrees that the contractor is solely responsible for the submissions and for compliance with the construction documents.  
OWNER further agrees that the ENGINEER’S review and action in relation to these submissions shall not constitute the provision of 
means, methods, techniques, sequencing or procedures of construction or extend or safety programs or precautions.  The 
ENGINEER’S consideration of a component does not constitute acceptance of the assembled items.  

The ENGINEER’S site observation during construction shall be at the times agreed upon in the Project Scope.  Through standard, 
reasonable means the ENGINEER will become generally familiar with observable completed work.  If the ENGINEER observes 
completed work that is inconsistent with the construction documents, that information shall be communicated to the contractor 
and OWNER for them to address.  

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs:  ENGINEER’S opinion of probable construction costs represents ENGINEER’S best and 
reasonable judgment as a professional engineer. OWNER acknowledges that ENGINEER has no control over construction costs of 
contractor’s methods of determining pricing, or over competitive bidding by contractors, or of market conditions or changes thereto. 
ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual construction costs will not vary from ENGINEER’S opinion of 
probable construction costs.  

Copies of Documents & Electronic Compatibility:  Copies of Documents that may be relied upon by OWNER are limited to the 
printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are signed or sealed by the ENGINEER. Files in electronic media format of text, data, 
graphics, or of other types that are furnished by ENGINEER to OWNER are only for convenience of OWNER. Any conclusion or 
information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's sole risk. When transferring documents in electronic 
media format, ENGINEER makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting from 
the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those used by ENGINEER at the 
beginning of the project.  

Changed Conditions:  If, during the term of this Agreement, circumstances or conditions that were not originally contemplated by or 
known to the ENGINEER are revealed, to the extent that they affect the scope of services, compensation, schedule, allocation of risks, 
or other material terms of this Agreement, the ENGINEER may call for renegotiation of appropriate portions of this Agreement. The 
ENGINEER shall notify the OWNER of the changed conditions necessitating renegotiation, and the ENGINEER and the OWNER shall 
promptly and in good faith enter into renegotiation of this Agreement to address the changed conditions. If terms cannot be agreed to, 
the parties agree that either party has the absolute right to terminate this Agreement, in accordance with the termination provision 
hereof.  

Hazardous Conditions:  OWNER represents to ENGINEER that to the best of its knowledge no Hazardous Conditions (environmental 
or otherwise) exist on the project site. If a Hazardous Condition is encountered or alleged, ENGINEER shall have the obligation to notify 
OWNER and, to the extent of applicable Laws and Regulations, appropriate governmental officials. It is acknowledged by both parties 
that ENGINEER's scope of services does not include any services related to a Hazardous Condition. In the event ENGINEER or any 
other party encounters a Hazardous Condition, ENGINEER may, at its option and without liability for consequential or any other 
damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of the project affected thereby until OWNER: (i) retains appropriate specialist 
consultant(s) or contractor(s) to identify and, as appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous Condition; and (ii) warrants 
that the project site is in full compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations.   

Consequential Damages:  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither 
the OWNER nor the ENGINEER, their respective officers, directors, partners, employees, contractors, or subcontractors shall be liable 
to the other or shall make any claim for any incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of or connected in any way to the 
Project or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver of consequential damages shall include, but is not limited to, loss of use, loss of profit, 
loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation, or any other consequential damages that either party may have incurred from any 
cause of action including negligence, strict liability, breach of contract, and breach of strict or implied warranty. Both the OWNER and 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                   CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 7 

the ENGINEER shall require similar waivers of consequential damages protecting all the entities or persons named herein in all 
contracts and subcontracts with others involved in this project.  

Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated for convenience, without cause, upon fourteen (14) days written notice of either 
party.  In the event of termination, the ENGINEER shall prepare a final invoice and be due compensation as set forth in the Professional 
Services Agreement for all costs incurred through the date of termination.  

Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon giving the other party not less than seven (7) calendar days’ written notice for 
the following reasons:  

(a) Substantial failure by the other party to comply with or perform in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and 
through no fault of the terminating party;  

(b) Assignment of the Agreement or transfer of the project without the prior written consent of the other party;  

(c) Suspension of the project or the ENGINEER’S services by the OWNER for a period of greater than ninety (90) 
calendar days, consecutive or in the aggregate.  

(d) Material changes in the conditions under which this Agreement was entered into, the scope of services or the 
nature of the project, and the failure of the parties to reach agreement on the compensation and schedule 
adjustments necessitated by such changes.  

Payment of Invoices:  Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt unless otherwise agreed to in writing.  

Third Party Beneficiaries:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in 
favor of a third party against either the OWNER or the ENGINEER. The ENGINEER’S services under this Agreement are being 
performed solely and exclusively for the OWNER’S benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any claim against the ENGINEER 
because of this Agreement or the performance or nonperformance of services hereunder. The OWNER and ENGINEER agree to 
require a similar provision in all contracts with contractors, subcontractors, vendors and other entities involved in this Project to carry 
out the intent of this provision.  

Force Majeure:  Each Party shall be excused from the performance of its obligations under this Agreement to the extent that such 
performance is prevented by force majeure (defined below) and the nonperforming party promptly provides notice of such prevention to 
the other party. Such excuse shall be continued so long as the condition constituting force majeure continues. The party affected by 
such force majeure also shall notify the other party of the anticipated duration of such force majeure, any actions being taken to avoid 
or minimize its effect after such occurrence, and shall take reasonable efforts to remove the condition constituting such force majeure. 
For purposes of this Agreement, “force majeure” shall include conditions beyond the control of the parties, including an act of God, acts 
of terrorism, voluntary or involuntary compliance with any regulation, law or order of any government, war, acts of war (whether war be 
declared or not), labor strike or lock-out, civil commotion, epidemic, failure or default of public utilities or common carriers, destruction of 
production facilities or materials by fire, earthquake, storm or like catastrophe. The payment of invoices due and owing hereunder shall 
in no event be delayed by the payer because of a force majeure affecting the payer.  

Additional Terms or Modification:  All prior understandings and agreements between the parties are merged into this Agreement, 
and this Agreement may not be modified orally or in any manner other than by an Agreement in writing signed by both parties.  In the 
event that any provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall be valid and 
binding on the parties.  

Assignment:  Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer or assign any rights or duties under or interest in this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the other party. Subcontracting normally contemplated by the ENGINEER shall not be considered an 
assignment for purposes of this Agreement.  

Waiver:  A party’s waiver of, or the failure or delay in enforcing any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the 
provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement.  

Attorney’s Fees:  In the event of any action or proceeding brought by either party against the other under this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all costs and expenses including without limitation the reasonable fees of its 
attorneys in such action or proceeding, including costs of appeal, if any, in such amount as the Court may adjudge reasonable.  

Fiduciary Duty:  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create, nor shall it be construed to create, a fiduciary duty owed to either 
party to the other party.  EEI makes no warranty, express or implied, as to its professional services rendered.    

Headings:  The headings used in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience only, and in no way define, limit, 
enlarge, modify, explain or define the text thereof nor affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.  

 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                   CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 8 

 
New Elevated Water Storage Tank (Design) 

Village of North Aurora, IL 
Professional Services Agreement - Design 

Attachment B – Scope of Services 

BACKGROUND 
The Village of North Aurora is anticipating constructing an elevated water storage tank in 
the vicinity of the existing Central Tower that is not currently operational.  The style and 
size of the tank will be confirmed as part of this project.     
  
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (EEI) will provide the necessary professional consulting and 
engineering services to design, bid, and contract the New Elevated Water Storage Tank.  
Below outlines the professional consulting and engineering services to assist the Village in 
completing these work items:    
     
PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AND MEETINGS 
0.01 Project Administration 
0.02 Progress Meeting with Village Staff (4) 
 
PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE  
1.01 Confirm Size of the EWST 
1.02 Prepare Comparison of a Multi-legged Tank versus a Single-Pedestal Spheroidal 

Tank 
1.03 Prepare Summary of Potential Bidders / Tank Erectors 
1.04 Conduct Site and Topographical Survey 
1.05 Coordinate Soil Borings and Soils Report  
1.06 Conduct Site Visits (2) - Pre and Post Design 
1.07 Perform a JULIE Design Request 
1.08 Prepare Draft Site Plan (Rough grading, Water Main, Storm Sewer/Drainage)  
1.09 Permits/Sign-offs (if required)  

o IDNR  - EcoCAT Sign-off 
o IHPA  - Historic Sign-off 
o Stormwater Permitting (Assumes No Wetlands, No Floodplain) 
o Village Building Permit 
o Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 

1.10 Electrical/ComEd Application and Initial Coordination    
1.11 Facilitate Mixing System Discussions with Vendors (If Necessary)    
1.12 Facilitate Cathodic Protection Discussions with Vendors (If Necessary)   
1.13 Prepare/Review Tank Optional Features with Village Staff    
1.14 Develop Tank Orientation/Tank Cross-Section Plans    
1.15 Prepare Logo Renderings (3) and Facilitate Logo Discussion with Village   
1.16 Telecommunication Facility Location Coordination    
1.17 Prepare 30% Complete Drawings and Specifications    
1.18 Present Final Layout and Logo to Village Board    
 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                                   CENTRAL ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (DESIGN) 

  
 
 
  PAGE 9 

 
FINAL DESIGN PHASE 
2.01 Prepare 60% Complete Drawings and Specifications 
2.02 Prepare 95% Complete Drawings and Specifications 
2.03 Prepare Basis of Design for EWST for IEPA Permit 
2.04 Prepare and Submit IEPA Permit Applications  
2.05 Prepare 95% Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 
2.06 SCADA Integration and Design  
2.07 Complete Plans and Specifications to 100% 
2.08 Prepare 100% Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 
 
BIDDING AND CONTRACTING PHASE  
3.01 Prepare Final Bid Documents and Advertise for Bid 
3.02 Respond to Inquiries 
3.03 Maintain Bidders List, Coordinate Addenda(s) and Distribution 
3.04 Prepare IEPA - Notice of Intent 
3.05 Prepare for and Attend Bid Opening 
3.06 Assist Village in Review of Bids and Prepare Bid Tabulation/Contract 
3.07 Attend Village Board Meeting for Anticipated Contract Award 
 
DIRECT EXPENSES/SUB-CONSULTANTS 

• Printing/Scanning/Vehicle Charges  
• Geotechnical Design Services (TBD) 
• Electrical Design Engineering Services (Archer Consulting) 
• SCADA Design Engineering Services (EEI will coordinate with and employ the 

Village’s selected SCADA consultant for this project.  Typically, the SCADA 
contractor will provide those services free of charge during the design phase. 

 
EXCLUSIONS: 

• Wetland delineation and any associated permitting if required. 
• Floodplain study and permitting 
• Property and Easement Acquisition Coordination   
• Boundary Survey 
• Kane-Dupage Soil and Water Conservation District Requirements for Land Use 

Change 
• Requirements Related to Zoning Changes 
• Property and Easement Acquisition Coordination (Excluded) 

o Prepare Plat of Survey (Excluded) 
o Prepare Plat of Easement (Excluded) 
o Property Acquisition Coordination As Necessary (Excluded) 

• Legal Research on the Property  
• Construction Engineering 

 
The above scope summarizes the work items that will be completed for this contract.  All 
work items are not known at this time and will only be completed upon direction from 
Village staff when necessary.   Additional work items shall be considered outside the 
scope of the base contract and will be billed in accordance with the Standard Schedule of 
Charges (Attachment D).  



ATTACHMENT C: ESTIMATE OF LEVEL OF EFFORT AND ASSOCIATED COST
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES            

CLIENT PROJECT NUMBER
Village of North Aurora NO2305

PROJECT TITLE DATE PREPARED BY
Central Elevated Water Storage Tank (Design Engineering) 10/25/23

ROLE PIC
TECH 

RESOURCE SPM PM SPE II PE SPS II
 CAD 
TECH ADMIN

PERSON JAM MLP CPD TAW MWS KA /TBD JB MAA DRA
RATE $239 $239 $231 $208 $196 $165 $196 $149 $70

PROJECT FACILITATION & ADMINISTRATION

0.01 Project Administration 4           4           8                  1,756$        

0.02 On-going Village Communication/Coordination/Updates 4                   4           8                  1,788$        

0.03 4           20                 8           20          52                11,744$      

Project Facilitation & Administration Subtotal: 4           24                 12          28          -            -             -             -             -            68                15,288$      

PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE

1.01 Confirm the Size of the EWST 4                   2           4            10                2,032$        

1.02 4                   8           4           16                3,404$        

1.03 Prepare Summary of Potential Bidders / Tank Erectors 4                   8           8           20                4,188$        

1.04 Conduct Site and Topographical Survey 1           22          23                4,520$        

1.05 Coordinate Soil Borings and Soils Report NA NA

1.06 Conduct Site Visits (2) - Pre and Post Design 4                   4           4           12                2,712$        

1.07 Perform a JULIE Design Request 2           6            8            16                2,598$        

1.08 2                   8           4           8            22                4,350$        

1.09

2            2                  330$           

2            2                  330$           

Stormwater Permitting (Assumes No Wetlands, No Floodplain) 8           2           2            12                2,594$        

Federal Aviation Administration 2           2            4                  746$           

1.10 Electrical/ComEd Application and Initial Coordination 4           4           24          32                5,716$        

1.11 Facilitate Mixing System Discussions with Vendors (If Necessary) 4           4           4            12                2,416$        

1.12 Facilitate Cathodic Protection Discussions with Vendors (If Necessary) 2                   4           4           4            14                2,894$        

1.13 Prepare/Review Tank Optional Features with Village Staff 2                   6           6           14                2,902$        

1.14 Develop Tank Orientation/Tank Cross-Section Plans 2                   6           6           12          26                4,690$        

1.15 Telecommunication Facility Location Coordination 4           24          28                4,408$        

1.16 Prepare 30% Complete Drawings and Specifications 2                   8           8           4           12          34                6,562$        

Background Information & Water System Audits Subtotal: -            26                 40          69          28          50          22          64          -            299              57,392$      

FINAL DESIGN PHASE

2.01 Prepare 60% Complete Drawings and Specifications 16          16          16          48                8,848$        

2.02 16          16          32          8            32          104              19,384$      

2.03 2                   1           4            1            8                  1,495$        

2.04 1                   2           6            9                  1,645$        

2.05 2           2           8            12                2,128$        

2.06 SCADA Integration and Design 2                   4           8           14                2,878$        

2.07 Complete Plans and Specifications to 100% 4                   16          16          24          60                10,500$      

2.08 1           1           4            6                  1,064$        

Final Design Phase Subtotal: -            9                   16          58          59          46          -             73          -            261              47,942$      

BIDDING AND CONTRACTING PHASE

3.01 12          12                2,496$        

3.02 Respond to Bidder Inquiries 1                   2           8           16          27                5,501$        

3.03 1           4           5                  476$           

3.04 Prepare IEPA - Notice of Intent 2            2                  330$           

3.05 Prepare for and Attend Bid Opening 2                   4           8           2           16                3,206$        

3.06 Assist Village in Review of Bids and Prepare Bid Tabulation/Contract 1                   4           2           7                  1,211$        

3.07 4                   4                  956$           

Bidding and Contracting Phase Subtotal: -            8                   6           32          17          2            -             -             8           73                14,176$      

4           67                 74          187        104        98          22          137        8           701              134,798$    

EEI STAFF DIRECT EXPENSES
JAM Julie A. Morrison, PE Printing/Scanning/Vehicle Charges = 300$           
MLP Michele L. Piotrowski, PE, LEED AP Geotechnical Design Services = NA
CPD Curt P. Dettmann, PE Electrical Design Services = 20,000$      
TAW Todd A. Wells, PE SCADA Design Engineering = -$           
MWS Michael W. Schweisthal, PE DIRECT EXPENSES = 20,300$      
KA Kamelia Afshinnia, PhD, PE(WI)

JB Josh Boatman
MAA Michael A. Agate LABOR SUMMARY
CRW Deborah R. Anderson EEI Labor Expenses = 134,798$    

TOTAL LABOR EXPENSES 134,798$    

TOTAL COSTS 155,098$    

NOTE: See Attachment B - Scope of Services for Additional Description of Work, Notes, and Exclusions

52 Wheeler Road, Sugar Grove, IL  60554  Tel: 630.466.6700  Fax: 630.466.6701  www.eeiweb.com

PROJECT TOTAL:

Prepare Comparison of a Multi-legged Tank, Composite Tank, 
and a Single-Pedestal Spheroidal Tank and Confirm Style

Prepare Draft Site Plan (Rough grading, Water Main, Storm 
Sewer/Drainage)

Prepare and Submit IEPA Permit Applications

Prepare 95% Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Prepare 100% Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Prepare Final Bid Documents and Coordinate Advertise for Bid

Maintain Bidders List, Coordinate Addenda(s) and Distribution

Attend Village Board Meeting for Anticipated Contract Award

Permits/Sign-offs 

IDNR - EcoCAT Sign-off

IHPA - Historic Sign-off

Prepare 95% Complete Drawings and Specifications

Prepare Basis of Design for EWST for IEPA Permit

MLP

TASK 
NO.

TASK DESCRIPTION HOURS COST

Project Initiation & Progress Meetings (4 Total Meetings with 
Village plus internal review meetings)



PROJECT SCHEDULE

CLIENT PROJECT NUMBER
Village of North Aurora NO2305

PROJECT TITLE DATE PREPARED BY
Central  Elevated Water Storage Tank (Design Engineering) MLP

2023
DEC JAN FEB MAR APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APRIL MAY JUNE JLUY AUG SEPT OCT NOV NOV

PROJECT FACILITATION & ADMINISTRATION
0.01

0.02

0.03
PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE

1.01 Confirm the Size of the EWST

1.02

1.03 Prepare Summary of Potential Bidders / Tank Erectors

1.04 Conduct Site and Topographical Survey

1.05 Coordinate Soil Borings and Soils Report

1.06 Conduct Site Visits (2) - Pre and Post Design

1.07 Perform a JULIE Design Request

1.08

1.09

1.1 Electrical/ComEd Application and Initial Coordination

1.11 Facilitate Mixing System Discussions with Vendors

1.12 Facilitate Cathodic Protection Discussions with Vendors

1.13 Prepare/Review Tank Optional Features with Village Staff

1.14 Develop Tank Orientation/Tank Cross-Section Plans

1.15 Telecommunication Facility Location Coordination
1.16 Prepare 30% Complete Drawings and Specifications

FINAL DESIGN PHASE
2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

2.06 SCADA Integration and Design

2.07
2.08

BIDDING AND CONTRACTING PHASE
3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06 Assist Village in Review of Bids and Prepare Bid Tabulation/Contract
3.07

CONSTRUCTION PHASE*
4.01

*Exact length of construction will depend on the size and type of tank constructed.

 52 Wheeler Road  Sugar Grove, IL  60554  Tel: 630.466.6700  Fax: 630.466.6701  www.eeiweb.com

Permits/Sign-offs 

11/24/23

TASK 
NO.

TASK DESCRIPTION

Project Administration

On-going Village Communication/Coordination/Updates

Project Initiation & Progress Meetings (4 Total Meetings with Village plus 
internal review meetings)

Prepare Comparison of a Multi-legged Tank, Composite Tank, and a 
Single-Pedestal Spheroidal Tank and Confirm Style

Prepare Draft Site Plan (Rough grading, Water Main, Storm 
Sewer/Drainage)

Prepare for and Attend Bid Opening

Attend Village Board Meeting for Anticipated Contract Award

Construction (Not Included in this Scope of Work)

20252024

Complete Plans and Specifications to 100%
Prepare 100% Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Prepare Final Bid Documents and Coordinate Advertise for Bid

Respond to Bidder Inquiries

Maintain Bidders List, Coordinate Addenda(s) and Distribution

Prepare IEPA - Notice of Intent

Prepare 60% Complete Drawings and Specifications

Prepare 95% Complete Drawings and Specifications

Prepare Basis of Design for EWST for IEPA Permit

Prepare and Submit IEPA Permit Applications

Prepare 95% Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost



  
   

 
 
EMPLOYEE DESIGNATION CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE 
 
  Senior Principal  E-4                            $244.00 
 
  Principal  E-3                            $239.00 
 
  Senior Project Manager  E-2                            $231.00 
 
  Project Manager  E-1                            $208.00 
 
  Senior Project Engineer/Surveyor II  P-6                            $196.00 
 
  Senior Project Engineer/Surveyor I    P-5                            $182.00 
 
  Project Engineer/Surveyor     P-4                            $165.00 
 
  Senior Engineer/Surveyor      P-3                            $152.00 
 
  Engineer/Surveyor     P-2                            $138.00 
 
  Associate Engineer/Surveyor  P-1                            $124.00 
 
  Senior Project Technician II  T-6                            $170.00 
 
  Senior Project Technician I  T-5                            $159.00 
 
  Project Technician  T-4                            $149.00 
 
  Senior Technician      T-3                            $138.00 
 
  Technician     T-2                            $124.00 
 
  Associate Technician  T-1                            $109.00 
 
  GIS Technician II  G-2                         $125.00 
 
  GIS Technician I  G-1                         $112.00 
 
  Engineering/Land Surveying Intern  I-1                           $  79.00 
 
  Executive Administrative Assistant  A-4                         $  75.00 
 
  Administrative Assistant  A-3                         $  70.00 
 
 

 

VEHICLES. REPROGRAPHICS, DIRECT COSTS, DRONE AND EXPERT TESTIMONY 
  Vehicle for Construction Observation                        $  15.00 
  In-House Scanning and Reproduction  $0.25/Sq. Ft. (Black & White) 
  $1.00/Sq. Ft. (Color) 
  Reimbursable Expenses (Direct Costs)                                 Cost 
  Services by Others (Direct Costs)                        Cost + 10%  
  Unmanned Aircraft System / Unmanned Aerial Vehicle / Drone                                $ 220.00   
  Expert Testimony                                         $ 276.00  

STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES ~ JANUARY 1, 2023 



Village of North Aurora 
Memorandum 

To: President and Village Board of Trustees 

From: 

CC: 

Jason Paprocki, Finance Director 

Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

Date: December 4, 2023 

RE: Approval of 2023 Tax Levy Items 

At the November 6th Village Board meeting, staff presented the preliminary 2023 tax levy 
estimates.  As discussed at the meeting, the Village’s total 2023 tax levy request will be 
$2,801,000, which represents a 4.13% increase over the 2022 tax levy extension.  The increase is 
made up of a 2.5% CPI increase and the added value of new construction. 

In addition, the tax levy request for the Messenger Public Library is included in the 2023 levy 
ordinance.  The Library’s 2023 tax levy request (general corporate levy and additional 0.02% 
building maintenance levy) is $2,116,900.  This represents a $99,893, or 4.95%, increase over 
the Library’s 2022 final tax extension. 

Notice for tonight’s public hearing on the 2023 tax levy was published in the Daily Herald on 
Friday November 24th. 

Also included tonight are the 2023 tax levy requests for the five of the Village’s six active special 
service areas (SSA).  There are no increases or decreases proposed for the following SSA’s:   

• Waterford Oaks (SSA #4) $18,600
• Timber Oaks SSA (SSA #8) $7,500
• Pinecreek Phase III SSA (SSA #9) $2,000
• Willow Lakes (SSA #11) $10,200
• North Aurora Towne Center SSA (SSA #32) $30,000

We are currently investigating pond improvements for the Oak Hill SSA #7 and plan to bring the 
levy request to the December 18th Village Board meeting. 

Finally, ordinances are presented to abate the 2023 tax levy to pay the Village’s outstanding 
bond issuances.  These are: the 2014 General Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Refunding 
Bonds (for the Police Station construction funded with sales tax revenues) and the 2017 General 
Obligation Alternate Revenue Source Bonds (for water wells, water tower, and other water 
related capital projects funded with water user fees). 



The following items on the agenda related to the 2023 tax levy include: 
 

• Approval of the Messenger Public Library Resolutions of the Board of Library Trustees 
for the 2023 Tax Levy and 0.02% Maintenance Tax 

• Approval of an Ordinance For The Levy And Assessment of Taxes in and for the Village of 
North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois for the Fiscal Year Beginning June 1, 2023 and Ending 
May 31, 2024 

• Approval of an Ordinance Levying the Taxes for the Waterford Oaks Special Service Area 
#4 for the Fiscal Year beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 

• Approval of an Ordinance Levying the Taxes for the Timber Oaks Special Service Area #8 
for the Fiscal Year beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 

• Approval of an Ordinance Levying the Taxes for the Pinecreek (Phase Ill) Special Service 
Area #9 for the Fiscal Year beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 

• Approval of an Ordinance Levying the Taxes for the Willow Lakes Special Service Area 
#11 for the Fiscal Year beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 

• Approval of an Ordinance Levying the Taxes for the North Towne Centre Special Service 
Area #32 for the Fiscal Year beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 

• Approval of an Ordinance Abating the Tax Heretofore Levied for the Year 2023 to Pay 
Debt Service on $6,885,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 (Alternate 
Revenue Source) 

• Approval of an Ordinance Abating the Tax Heretofore Levied for the Year 2023 to Pay 
Debt Service On $5,800,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 (Alternate Revenue 
Source) 











  

State of Illinois   ) 
               ) ss. 
County of Kane  ) 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street  
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
Return to: 
Village Clerk 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State St. 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page is added for the purpose of affixing Recording Information 

 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

Ordinance Number:_______________________________ 
 
 

 

Ordinance for the Levy and Assessment of Taxes in and for  
the Village of North Aurora and the Messenger Public Library, Kane County, 

Illinois for the Fiscal Year  
Beginning June 1, 2023 and Ending May 31, 2024 

 
As it appears in the records of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

 
 

 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 
the _______ day of  __________________, 2023 

 
 
Record and return to: 
 
Natalie Stevens 
Community and Board Relations Coordinator 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
630-897-8228 

 

 



  

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _______________________ 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE LEVY AND ASSESSMENT OF TAXES IN AND  
FOR THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA AND THE MESSENGER PUBLIC LIBRARY, KANE 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF NORTH 
AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS: 

SECTION 1. That the sum of $4,917,900 be and the same is hereby levied from and against all the 
real and personal property within the limits of the Village of North Aurora subject to taxation according to the 
ad valorem value of the said property after same is assessed and equalized for State and County purposes for the 
current fiscal year and said Village of North Aurora commencing June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024, 
the objects and purposes and respective amounts for which budget were heretofore made and the objects and 
purposes and the respective amounts hereby levied and assessed the aggregate sum of $4,917,900 are as 
follows (“Year Ending May 31, 2024 Levy”): 

 2023/24   

  Amount Budgeted  Other Sources Amount Levied 
GENERAL FUND    
    
LEGISLATIVE AND BOARDS    
Stipend - Village President $10,800   
Stipend - Trustees 43,200   
Stipend - Village Clerk 7,200   
Stipend - Liquor Commission 1,200   
Per Diem - Police Pension Board 1,250   
Per Diem - Plan Commission 3,500   
FICA - Social Security and Med 4,775   
Legal 5,000   
Conferences and Travel 1,150   
Dues and Meetings 11,985   
Office Expenses 850   
Misc. Expenditures 19,500   
Equipment 500   
LEGISLATIVE AND BOARDS $110,910 $104,530 $6,380 

    
ADMIN/FINANCE    
Salaries - Regular $863,225   
Salaries - Part-time 72,385   
Overtime 1,000   
FICA - Social Security and Med 71,650   
IMRF 95,245   
Health Insurance 101,855   
PSEBA Benefits 28,200   
Life Insurance 150   
Dental Insurance 2,890   
Legal Services 40,000   
Audit Services 24,960   
Finance Services 31,900   
Professional/Consulting Fees 60,000   



  

Conferences and Travel 14,200   
Seminars and Training 14,000   
Dues and Meetings 5,080   
Office Expenses 5,000   
Information Technology Supplies 7,500   
Postage 1,750   
Publishing/Advertising 3,840   
Printing 13,125   
Equipment/IT Repair and Maint. 135,925   
Website Maintenance 5,150   
Banking Services/Fees 15,500   
Phones and Connectivity 14,000   
Miscellaneous 15,605   
Equipment 7,000   
Vehicle Equipment Fund Charges 12,560   
ADMIN/FINANCE $1,663,695 $1,581,095 $82,600 

    
POLICE COMMISSION    
Meetings Per Diem $1,800   
Legal 500   
Recruit Testing 6,500   
Dues and Meetings 375   
POLICE COMMISSION $9,175 $9,175 $- 

    
POLICE    
Salaries - Regular $3,753,510   
Salaries - Part-time 69,755   
Salaries - Overtime 133,000   
Salaries - Court Time 12,800   
Service Pay 1,500   
On-Call Pay 20,000   
Specialty Pay 3,120   
FICA - Social Security and Med 307,140   
IMRF 29,630   
Health Insurance 424,740   
Life Insurance 770   
Dental Insurance 10,895   
Police Pension 1,652,490   
Uniform Allowance 56,430   
Legal Services  55,000   
Professional Consulting 4,960   
Conferences and Travel 26,555   
Training 34,010   
Firearm Training 41,700   
Tuition Reimbursement 500   
Dues and Meetings 21,795   
Office Expenses 12,000   
Gas and Oil 72,000   
Prisoner MTCE and Supplies 1,000   
Comfort Dog Supplies 6,135   
Drug Fund 2,000   
Community Service 44,000   
Postage 3,500   
Equipment/IT Repair and Maint. 73,770   
Vehicle Repair and Maint. 55,500   



  

Animal Control 1,000   
Investigations 17,025   
Evidence Processing 4,000   
Emergency Management 23,900   
Phones and Connectivity 65,600   
Dispatching Services 250,000   
Miscellaneous 10,735   
Equipment 26,600   
Vehicle Equipment Fund Charges 238,550   
POLICE $7,567,615 $5,307,305 $2,260,310 

    
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT    
Salaries - Regular $468,315   
Salaries - Overtime 6,500   
FICA - Social Security and Med 36,325   
IMRF 48,860   
Health Insurance 68,850   
Life Insurance 110   
Dental Insurance 1,505   
Uniform Allowance 500   
Engineering Services 40,000   
Legal Services 20,000   
Planning 5,000   
Inspection Services 135,000   
Professional Consulting Fees 10,000   
Conferences and Travel 9,300   
Training 2,800   
Dues and Meetings 6,365   
Office Expenses 4,000   
Gas and Oil 4,000   
Postage 1,800   
Publishing 3,000   
Printing 500   
Equipment/IT Repair and Maint. 500   
Vehicle Repair and Maint. 1,000   
Grass Cutting 1,500   
Phones and Connectivity 8,800   
Miscellaneous 1,500   
Equipment 500   
Vehicle Equipment Fund Charges 14,525   
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT $901,055 $856,250 $44,805 

    
PUBLIC WORKS    
Salaries - Regular $1,209,165   
Salaries - Part-time 17,000   
Salaries - Overtime 60,000   
On-Call Pay 20,500   
FICA - Social Security and Med 99,965   
IMRF 133,215   
Health Insurance 189,500   
Life Insurance 325   
Dental Insurance 5,370   
Uniform Allowance 5,950   
Engineering Services 12,000   
Legal Services 7,500   



  

Conferences and Travel 9,700   
Training 9,900   
Dues and Meetings 3,360   
Office Expenses 2,970   
Custodial Supplies 10,600   
Safety Supplies 2,000   
Tools 5,000   
Salt 4,000   
Gas and Oil 50,000   
Postage 800   
Publishing 1,500   
Printing 100   
Equipment/IT Repair and Maint. 13,000   
Vehicle Repair and Maint. 120,500   
Public Buildings Repair and Maint. 132,300   
Mosquito Control 62,000   
Public Grounds Repair and Maint 77,500   
Grass Cutting 60,265   
Tree Service 144,000   
Snow Removal 150,000   
Streets and Alleys Repair and Maint. 52,640   
Sidewalks Repair and Maint. 28,000   
Storm Drain Maintenance 41,000   
Traffic Signs and Signals 30,000   
Phones and Connectivity 18,000   
Utility 2,500   
Miscellaneous 5,000   
Equipment Purchases 27,500   
Vehicle Equipment Fund Charges 238,750   
PUBLIC WORKS $3,063,375 $2,954,470 $108,905 

    
NON-DEPARTMENTAL    
Fireworks $36,250   
Community Events 36,500   
Beautification Committee 21,000   
Sales Tax Rebates 345,000   
Misc. Expenditures 10,000   
NON-DEPARTMENTAL $448,750 $448,750 $- 

    
INSURANCE FUND    
Unemployment Tax $8,000   
Insurance Claims 25,000   
Liability Insurance 348,500   
INSURANCE FUND $381,500 $83,500 $298,000 

    
SUBTOTAL VILLAGE $14,146,075 $11,345,075 $2,801,000 

    
DEBT SERVICE    
Bonds and Interest $-   
DEBT SERVICE $- $- $- 
 
LIBRARY FUND    
Salaries/Benefits $1,381,000   
Materials and Electronic Resources 205,000   
Development/Education/Training 19,000   



  

Technology Equipment, Resources, 
Services 145,000   
Audit 12,000   
General Operating and Admin 81,500   
Programming and Outreach 66,000   
Utilities and Telecommunication 52,000   
Insurance 29,000   
Furniture Fixtures 11,000   
Capital Building Project 450,000   
LIBRARY FUND $2,451,500 $450,000 $2,001,500 
 
LIBRARY BLDG & EQUIP. MAINT.    
Library Bldg Equip & Maint $115,400   
LIBRARY BLDG & EQUIP. MAINT. $115,400 $- $115,400 

    

GRAND TOTAL $16,712,975 $11,795,075 $4,917,900 

    

    
Recapitulation  Budget Amount  Other Sources Amount Levied 

    
LEGISLATIVE $106,135 $101,135 $5,000 
ADMIN/FINANCE 1,456,800 1,426,800 30,000 
POLICE COMMISSION 9,175 9,175 - 
POLICE   5,404,845 5,229,845 175,000 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 815,870 795,870 20,000 
PUBLIC WORKS 2,830,195 2,789,195 41,000 
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 448,750 448,750 - 
SUB TOTAL corporate $11,071,770 $10,800,770 $271,000 

   
OTHER    

    
AUDIT $40,000 $36,000 $4,000 
LIABILITY INSURANCE 373,500 78,500 295,000 
POLICE PROTECTION 173,510 11,510 162,000 
EMPLOYER'S SOCIAL SECURITY 519,855 369,855 150,000 
UMEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 8,000 5,000 3,000 
IMRF 306,950 216,950 90,000 
POLICE PENSION 1,652,490 (173,510) 1,826,000 
BONDS AND INTEREST -   

SUB TOTAL $3,074,305 $544,305 $2,530,000 

    
VILLAGE SUBTOTAL $14,146,075 $11,345,075 $2,801,000 

    

LIBRARY FUND $2,451,500 $450,000 $2,001,500 
LIBRARY BLDG. & EQUIP. MAINT. 115,400 - 115,400 
LIBRARY SUB TOTAL $2,566,900 $450,000 $2,116,900 

    

TOTALS: $16,712,975 $11,795,075 $4,917,900 

 
SECTION 2. That express reference for greater certainty is hereby made to the Budget of the Village of 

North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois for the fiscal year beginning June 1, 2023, and ending May 31, 2024, 
adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois on May 1, 2023, and 
thereafter published and recorded according to law, in which said Budget said Board budgeted such sums of 



  

money as are deemed necessary to defray all expenses and liabilities of said Village of North Aurora, Kane 
County, Illinois, for said fiscal year and in which was budgeted for each object or purpose specified, and in 
which said Budget has been amended by Ordinance since adoption. 

SECTION 3. That the Year Ending May 31, 2024 Levy is less than five percent (5%) greater than the 
extensions for the fiscal year beginning June 1, 2022, and ending May 31, 2023; notice of the Truth in taxation 
Hearing was published on November 24, 2023, and the hearing was conducted pursuant to the notice prior to 
passage of this Ordinance on December 4, 2023. 

SECTION 4. That the Village Clerk of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois is hereby 
directed to cause to be filed forthwith with the County Clerk of Kane County, Illinois, a certified copy of this 
Ordinance. 

SECTION 5. That this Ordinance shall be printed in pamphlet form by authority of the President of the 
Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois. 

SECTION 6. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the 
Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, its approval by the President of said 
Board, its recording by the Clerk, and lapse of time as prescribed by law. 

Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this ___ 
day of December, 2023. 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this ____  
day of December, 2023 
 

Jason Christiansen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

   
  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois this               day of ___________________ 2023, A.D. 

 

________________________________ 

ATTEST: Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk 
 



State of Illinois   ) 
               ) ss. 
County of Kane  ) 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street  
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
Return to: 
Village Clerk 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State St. 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 

 
 
 

This page is added for the purpose of affixing Recording Information 

 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

Ordinance Number:_______________________________ 
 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE WATERFORD OAKS 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #4 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

 
 

As it appears in the records of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
 
 

 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 
the _______ day of  __________________, 2023 

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. __________________ 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE WATERFORD OAKS 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #4 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 96-24 establishing the Waterford Oaks Special Service Area 
(the “Special Service Area”) was passed on July 22, 1996, as amended by Ordinance No. 10-11-
01-01 passed on November 1, 2010, for the property collectively described therein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the cost for maintenance of the Special Service Area is $18,600.00, which does 
not exceed by more than five percent (5%) of the levy from the previous year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ordinance establishing the Waterford Oaks Special Service Area was recorded 

in the Kane County Recorder of Deeds Office and filed with the Kane County Clerk's Office, all 
according to law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 
of North Aurora, Illinois, as follows: 

1. That the foregoing recitals as set forth above are incorporated herein expressly as the findings 
of the Board of Trustees; 

2. That the amount of $18,600.00 shall be levied as the Special Service Area tax for the fiscal 
year beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 for the Waterford Oaks Special 
Service Area; 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 
publication, in pamphlet form, as required by law. 

 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 

day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ day 
of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 
Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane 

County, Illinois this               day of ___________________ 2023, A.D. 

________________________________ 

ATTEST: Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk 



State of Illinois   ) 
               ) ss. 
County of Kane  ) 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street  
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
Return to: 
Village Clerk 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State St. 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is added for the purpose of affixing Recording Information 

 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

Ordinance Number:_______________________________ 
 
 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE  
TIMBER OAKS SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #8 FOR THE FISCAL  

YEAR BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 
 

As it appears in the records of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
 
 

 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 
the _______ day of  __________________, 2023 

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. ___________________   
 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE  
TIMBER OAKS SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #8 FOR THE FISCAL  

YEAR BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 96-37 establishing the Timber Oaks Special Service Area (the 
“Special Service Area”) was passed on October 28, 1996 for the property collectively described therein; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the cost for maintenance of the Special Service Area is $7,500.00, which does not 
exceed by more than five percent (5%) of the levy from the previous year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ordinance establishing the Timber Oaks Special Service Area was recorded in 

the Kane County Recorder of Deeds Office and filed with the Kane County Clerk's Office, all 
according to law; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 
of North Aurora, Illinois, as follows: 

1. That the foregoing recitals as set forth above are incorporated herein expressly as the findings 
of the Board of Trustees; 

2. That the amount of $7,500.00 shall be levied as the Special Service Area tax for the fiscal 
year beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 for the Timber Oaks Special Service 
Area; 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 
publication, in pamphlet form, as required by law. 

 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 

_____ day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 

Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this               day of ___________________ 2023, A.D. 

 

________________________________ 

ATTEST: Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk 



State of Illinois   ) 
               ) ss. 
County of Kane  ) 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street  
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
Return to: 
Village Clerk 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State St. 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is added for the purpose of affixing Recording Information 

 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

Ordinance Number:_______________________________ 
 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE PINECREEK (PHASE III) 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #9 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

 
As it appears in the records of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

 
 

 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 
the _______ day of  __________________, 2023 

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE PINECREEK (PHASE III) 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #9 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 97-22 establishing the Pinecreek (Phase III) Special Service Area 

(the “Special Service Area”) was passed on July 14, 1997 for the property collectively described 
therein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the cost for the maintenance of the Special Service Area is $2,000.00, which does 
not exceed by more than five percent (5%) of the levy from the previous year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ordinance establishing the Pinecreek (Phase III) Special Service Area was 

recorded in the Kane County Recorder of Deeds Office and filed with the Kane County Clerk's Office, 
all according to law; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the 
Village of North Aurora, Illinois, as follows: 

 
1. That the foregoing recitals as set forth above are incorporated herein expressly as the findings 

of the Board of Trustees; 
2. That the amount of $2,000.00 shall be levied as the Special Service Area tax for the fiscal year 

beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 for the Pine Creek (Phase III) Special 
Service Area; 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and publication, 
in pamphlet form, as required by law. 

 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 

_____ day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 

Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this               day of ___________________ 2023, A.D. 

 

________________________________ 

ATTEST: Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk 

 



State of Illinois   ) 
               ) ss. 
County of Kane  ) 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street  
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
Return to: 
Village Clerk 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State St. 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is added for the purpose of affixing Recording Information 

 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

Ordinance Number:_______________________________ 
 
 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE WILLOW LAKES 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #11 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

 
 

As it appears in the records of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
 
 

 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 
the _______ day of  __________________, 2023 



 
ORDINANCE NO. ________________________

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE WILLOW LAKES 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #11 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 98-2 establishing the Willow Lakes Special Service Area (the 
“Special Service Area”) was passed on February 9, 1998 for the property collectively described therein; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the cost for maintenance of the Special Service Area is $10,200.00, which does 
not exceed by more than five percent (5%) of the levy from the previous year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ordinance establishing the Willow Lakes Special Service Area was recorded in 

the Kane County Recorder of Deeds Office and filed with the Kane County Clerk's Office, all according 
to law; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 
of North Aurora, Illinois, as follows: 

1. That the foregoing recitals as set forth above are incorporated herein expressly as the findings 
of the Board of Trustees; 

2. That the amount of $10,200.00 shall be levied as the Special Service Area tax for the fiscal 
year beginning June 1, 2023 and ending May 31, 2024 for the Willow Lakes Special Service 
Area; 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 
publication, in pamphlet form, as required by law. 

 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 

_____ day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 
Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane 

County, Illinois this               day of ___________________ 2023, A.D. 

________________________________ 

ATTEST: Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk 



State of Illinois   ) 
               ) ss. 
County of Kane  ) 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street  
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
Return to: 
Village Clerk 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State St. 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is added for the purpose of affixing Recording Information 

 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

Ordinance Number: _______________________________ 
 
 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE  
NORTH AURORA TOWNE CENTRE SERVICE AREA #32 FOR THE FISCAL  

YEAR BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 
 

As it appears in the records of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
 
 

 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 
the _______ day of  __________________, 2023 

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. ___________________   
 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE  
NORTH AURORA TOWNE CENTRE SERVICE AREA #32 FOR THE FISCAL  

YEAR BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2023 AND ENDING MAY 31, 2024 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 05-10-24-02 establishing the North Aurora Towne Centre Service 
Area #32 (the “Special Service Area”) was passed on October 24, 2005, for the property collectively 
described therein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the cost for maintenance of the Special Service Area is $30,000.00, which does 
not exceed by more than five percent (5%) of the levy from the previous year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ordinance establishing the North Aurora Towne Centre Service Area #32 was 

recorded in the Kane County Recorder of Deeds Office and filed with the Kane County Clerk's Office, 
all according to law; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 
of North Aurora, Illinois, as follows: 

1. That the foregoing recitals as set forth above are incorporated herein expressly as the findings 
of the Board of Trustees; 

2. That the amount of $30,000.00 shall be levied as the Special Service Area tax for the fiscal 
year beginning June 1, 2023, and ending May 31, 2024, for the North Aurora Towne Centre 
Service Area #32; 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 
publication, in pamphlet form, as required by law. 

 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 

day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 
Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ day 

of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois this               day of ___________________ 2023, A.D. 

________________________________ 

ATTEST: Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk 

 



 

State of Illinois   ) 
               ) ss. 
County of Kane  ) 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street  
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
Return to: 
Village Clerk 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State St. 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page is added for the purpose of affixing Recording Information 

 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

Ordinance Number:_______________________________ 
 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAX HERETOFORE LEVIED FOR THE YEAR 2023 
TO PAY DEBT SERVICE ON $6,885,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 

SERIES 2014 (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), 
OF THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
As it appears in the records of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

 

 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 
the _______ day of  __________________, 2023 



 

ORDINANCE NO.  _______ 
AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAX HERETOFORE LEVIED  

FOR THE YEAR 2023 TO PAY DEBT SERVICE ON $6,885,000 GENERAL  
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2014 (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), OF  

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees (the "Board") of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois (the "Village"), by ordinance adopted on the 20th day of October, 2014 (the 

"Ordinance"), did provide for the issue of $6,885,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 

2014 (Alternate Revenue Source), dated November 13, 2014 (the "Bonds"), and the levy of a direct 

annual tax sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, funds are available for the purpose of paying debt service on the Bonds heretofore 

imposed by the 2023 levy; and 

WHEREAS, such funds are hereby directed to be deposited into the Pledged Revenues 

Account (as defined in the Ordinance) of the Bond Fund (as defined in the Ordinance) and used for 

the purpose of paying debt service on the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the Village that the tax heretofore levied for 

the year 2023 to pay the Bonds be abated. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. Abatement of Tax. The tax heretofore levied for the year 2023 in the 

Ordinance is hereby abated in its entirety. 

Section 2. Filing of Ordinance. Forthwith upon the adoption of this ordinance, the Village 

Clerk of the Village shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk of Kane County, Illinois, and 

it shall be the duty of said County Clerk to abate said tax levied for the year 2023 in accordance with the 

provisions hereof. 

 



 

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith upon its 

adoption. 

Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 

 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ day 
of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois this               day of ___________________ 2023, A.D. 

 

________________________________ 

ATTEST: Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk 

 



 

State of Illinois   ) 
               ) ss. 
County of Kane  ) 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State Street  
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
Return to: 
Village Clerk 
Village of North Aurora 
25 E. State St. 
North Aurora, IL 60542 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page is added for the purpose of affixing Recording Information 

 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 

Ordinance Number:_______________________________ 
 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAX HERETOFORE LEVIED FOR THE YEAR 2023 
TO PAY DEBT SERVICE ON $5,800,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 

SERIES 2017 (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), 
OF THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
As it appears in the records of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

 

 
Adopted by the Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 
the _______ day of  __________________, 2023 

 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO.  _______ 
AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAX HERETOFORE LEVIED  

FOR THE YEAR 2023 TO PAY DEBT SERVICE ON $5,800,000 GENERAL  
OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2017 (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), OF  

THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees (the "Board") of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois (the "Village"), by ordinance adopted on the 20th day of March, 2017 (the 

"Ordinance"), did provide for the issue of $5,800,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 

(Alternate Revenue Source), dated April 4, 2017 (the "Bonds"), and the levy of a direct annual tax 

sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, funds are available for the purpose of paying debt service on the Bonds heretofore 

imposed by the 2023 levy; and 

WHEREAS, such funds are hereby directed to be deposited into the Pledged Revenues 

Account (as defined in the Ordinance) of the Bond Fund (as defined in the Ordinance) and used for 

the purpose of paying debt service on the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the Village that the tax heretofore levied for 

the year 2023 to pay the Bonds be abated. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. Abatement of Tax. The tax heretofore levied for the year 2023 in the 

Ordinance is hereby abated in its entirety. 

Section 2. Filing of Ordinance. Forthwith upon the adoption of this ordinance, the Village 

Clerk of the Village shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk of Kane County, Illinois, and 

it shall be the duty of said County Clerk to abate said tax levied for the year 2023 in accordance with the 

provisions hereof. 

 



 

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith upon its 

adoption. 

Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023, A.D. 

 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ day 
of ______________, 2023, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois this               day of ___________________ 2023, A.D. 

 

________________________________ 

ATTEST: Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
________________________________ 
Village Clerk 

 



 
Village of North Aurora  

Memorandum 
 

 
To: 

 
President and Village Board of Trustees 

 
From: 
 
CC: 

 
Jason Paprocki, Finance Director 
 
Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

 
Date: 

 
December 4, 2023 

 
RE: 

 
Approval of 0.5% Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax Increase Ballot Question 

  
 
At the October 16, 2023 Committee of the Whole meeting, staff presented various funding 
options for the future public works facility and long‐term capital plan.  One of the options 
discussed was increasing the Village’s non‐home rule sales tax from 0.5% to 1.0% (the maximum 
allowable).  This increase is projected to bring $1.3 to $1.5 million in new revenue annually.  Per 
State statute, non‐home rule sales tax revenue can be used on public infrastructure, property 
tax relief, and/or municipal operations (until July 1, 2030). 
 
At the November 20, 2023 Committee of the Whole meeting, staff presented a brief 
presentation explaining the referendum process and a proposed referendum ballot question.  As 
a non‐home rule community, the Village must receive voter approval to increase its non‐home 
rule sales tax.  To place a referendum question on the March 19, 2024 General Primary ballot, 
the Village Board must approve a resolution initiating a public question and provide a certified 
copy to the Kane County Clerk by January 11, 2024.  If the referendum passes, the Village would 
then pass an ordinance increasing its non‐home rule sales tax to 1%.  The ordinance and 
certified election results would then be filed with the Illinois Department of Revenue, and the 
new tax would begin on July 1, 2024. 
 
The proposed question presented at the November 20, 2023 Committee of the Whole meeting, 
which followed the State statute, is below: 
 

“Shall the corporate authorities of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 
increase its Non‐Home Rule Municipal Retailers’ Occupation Tax and Non‐Home Rule 
Municipal Service Occupation Tax from 0.5% to a rate of 1.0% for expenditures on 
municipal operations, expenditures on public infrastructure, and/or for property tax 
relief?” 

 
When the Village first passed its 0.5% non‐home rule sales tax in 2003, the only purpose listed 
was funding necessary infrastructure improvements.  At that time, the only other allowable 
option was property tax relief, which the Village opted not to include.  Since then, the option of 
municipal operations has been added, but only through July 1, 2030.  The Board needs to decide 
which purpose(s) we are asking to raise funds for. 



Staff is proposing two different referendum questions:  one that continues the purpose of 
infrastructure improvements only and one that includes all three allowable purposes.  The 
proposed questions were submitted to the Illinois Department of Revenue for approval since 
they vary slightly from the referendum question included in the State statute. 
 

“Shall the Village of North Aurora increase its Non‐Home Rule Municipal Retailers’ 
Occupation Tax and Non‐Home Rule Municipal Service Occupation Tax (i.e., local 
municipal sales tax) from 0.5% to a rate of 1.0% for expenditures on public 
improvements and infrastructure?” 
 
or 
 
“Shall the Village of North Aurora increase its Non‐Home Rule Municipal Retailers’ 
Occupation Tax and Non‐Home Rule Municipal Service Occupation Tax (i.e., local 
municipal sales tax) from 0.5% to a rate of 1.0% for expenditures on municipal 
operations, expenditures on public improvements and infrastructure, and/or for 
property tax relief?” 
 

Attached are two different resolutions for approval that contain the versions of the referendum 
question noted.  Staff is requesting the Village Board to choose a proposed question and vote on 
the corresponding resolution.  



 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
Resolution No. ___________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING THE SUBMISSION OF A PUBLIC QUESTION TO 
INCREASE THE VILLAGE’S EXISTING LOCAL MUNICIPAL SALES TAX 

FROM 1/2% TO A RATE OF 1% TO THE VOTERS OF THE 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 

Adopted by the 
Board of Trustees and President 
of the Village of North Aurora 

this ____ day of __________, 2023 
 

 
 

Published in Pamphlet Form 
by authority of the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 
this ____ day of __________, 2023 

by ________________________________. 
 
 
 

Signed _____________________________________ 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 Pages 

Resolution No.___________________ 
A Resolution Initiating the Submission of a Public Question to 

Increase the Village’s Existing Local Municipal Sales Tax 
From 1/2% to a Rate of 1% to the Voters of the 

Village of North Aurora 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora (the Village), pursuant to a duly held 
referendum held in April 2003, and as provided by Section 8-11-1.1 of the Illinois Municipal 
Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-1.1), adopted an ordinance imposing a tax of ½ of 1% on all persons 
engaged in the business of making sales of service as provided in Sections 8-11-1.3 and 8-11-1.4, 
respectively, of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-1.3 and 8-11-1.4); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the sales tax collected has been used for expenditures on public 
infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 8-11-1.3 and 8-11-1.4 of the Illinois Municipal Code states the 
Village may increase said taxes in 1/4% increments pursuant to a duly held referendum; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the existing Village funds are not sufficient 
to provide funds to pay the cost of providing an adequate public infrastructure system to meet the 
present and future needs of the residents of the Village; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that a need exists for increasing the current 
funding for expenditures on infrastructure and public improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, before the Board is authorized to increase its retailers' occupation tax and 
its municipal service occupation tax for expenditures on infrastructure and public improvements 
from 1/2 of 1% to 1%, a proposition authorizing the Board to impose such taxes must be 
submitted to the voters of the Village as provided by Section 8-11-1.1 of the Illinois Municipal 
Code, 65 ILCS 5/8-11-1.1, and all laws amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto, and such 
proposition must be approved by a majority of the voters of the Village voting on such 
proposition at an election held in and for the Village; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board hereby deems it advisable, necessary and in the best interests of 
the Village and its residents that the proposition to authorize the Board to increase its retailers' 
occupation tax and its municipal service occupation tax from 1/2% to a rate of 1% for 
expenditures on infrastructure and public improvements be submitted to the voters of the Village 
at an election to be held and conducted in accordance with the general election law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the 
Village of North Aurora, as follows: 
 

1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as the material findings of the 
President and the Board of Trustees. 

 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 Pages 

2. A public question shall be submitted to voters of the Village of North Aurora, County of 
Kane, State of Illinois, at the March 19, 2024 General Primary Election as follows: 
 
“Shall the Village of North Aurora increase its Non-Home Rule Municipal Retailers’ 
Occupation Tax and Non-Home Rule Municipal Service Occupation Tax (i.e., local 
municipal sales tax) from 0.5% to a rate of 1.0% for expenditures on public 
improvements and infrastructure?” 

 
3. Upon the passage and approval of this Resolution, the Village Clerk is hereby authorized 

and directed to certify to the local election authority in accordance with Section 28-5 of 
the Illinois Election Code the question described above to be considered at the next 
General Primary Election on March 19, 2024. 

 
4. This Resolution shall take immediate full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval by the President, and publication as required by law. 
 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
_____ day of ___________, 2023, A.D. 
 
Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 
day of ___________, 2023, A.D. 
 
 Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis  _________ 
 
 Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 
 Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 
Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 
Kane County, Illinois this _______ day of _________________, 2023 A.D. 
 
    
      ___________________________________ 
      Village President Mark Gaffino 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
Resolution No. ___________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING THE SUBMISSION OF A PUBLIC QUESTION TO 
INCREASE THE VILLAGE’S EXISTING LOCAL MUNICIPAL SALES TAX 

FROM 1/2% TO A RATE OF 1% TO THE VOTERS OF THE 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 

Adopted by the 
Board of Trustees and President 
of the Village of North Aurora 

this ____ day of __________, 2023 
 

 
 

Published in Pamphlet Form 
by authority of the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 
this ____ day of __________, 2023 

by ________________________________. 
 
 
 

Signed _____________________________________ 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 Pages 

Resolution No.___________________ 
A Resolution Initiating the Submission of a Public Question to 

Increase the Village’s Existing Local Municipal Sales Tax 
From 1/2% to a Rate of 1% to the Voters of the 

Village of North Aurora 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora (the Village), pursuant to a duly held 
referendum held in April 2003, and as provided by Section 8-11-1.1 of the Illinois Municipal 
Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-1.1), adopted an ordinance imposing a tax of ½ of 1% on all persons 
engaged in the business of making sales of service as provided in Sections 8-11-1.3 and 8-11-1.4, 
respectively, of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-1.3 and 8-11-1.4); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the sales tax collected has been used for expenditures on public 
infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Illinois Municipal Code provides that the sales tax collected pursuant to 
Sections 8-11-1.3 and 8-11-1.4 may also be used on municipal operations and/or property tax 
relief pursuant to a duly held referendum; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 8-11-1.3 and 8-11-1.4 of the Illinois Municipal Code states the 
Village may increase said taxes in 1/4% increments pursuant to a duly held referendum; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the existing Village funds are not sufficient 
to provide funds to pay the cost of providing an adequate public infrastructure system to meet the 
present and future needs of the residents of the Village; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that a need exists to use such taxes on municipal 
operations in order to maintain municipal services to the residents of the Village; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that there is a need for property tax relief to all 
classes of property within the Village; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that a need exists for increasing the current 
funding for expenditures on municipal operations, expenditures on public infrastructure, and/or 
property tax relief; and 
 
 WHEREAS, before the Board is authorized to increase its retailers' occupation tax and 
its municipal service occupation tax for expenditures on municipal operations, public 
infrastructure, and/or for property tax relief from 1/2 of 1% to 1%, a proposition authorizing the 
Board to impose such taxes must be submitted to the voters of the Village as provided by Section 
8-11-1.1 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/8-11-1.1, and all laws amendatory thereof 
and supplemental thereto, and such proposition must be approved by a majority of the voters of 
the Village voting on such proposition at an election held in and for the Village; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board hereby deems it advisable, necessary and in the best interests of 
the health, safety, and welfare of the Village and its residents that the proposition to authorize the 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 Pages 

Board to increase its retailers' occupation tax and its municipal service occupation tax from 1/2% 
to a rate of 1% for expenditures on municipal operations, public infrastructure, and/or for 
property tax relief be submitted to the voters of the Village at an election to be held and 
conducted in accordance with the general election law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the 
Village of North Aurora, as follows: 
 

1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as the material findings of the 
President and the Board of Trustees. 

 
2. A public question shall be submitted to voters of the Village of North Aurora, County of 

Kane, State of Illinois, at the March 19, 2024 General Primary Election as follows: 
 
“Shall the Village of North Aurora increase its Non-Home Rule Municipal Retailers’ 
Occupation Tax and Non-Home Rule Municipal Service Occupation Tax (i.e., local 
municipal sales tax) from 0.5% to a rate of 1.0% for expenditures on municipal 
operations, expenditures on public improvements and infrastructure, and/or for property 
tax relief?” 

 
3. Upon the passage and approval of this Resolution, the Village Clerk is hereby authorized 

and directed to certify to the local election authority in accordance with Section 28-5 of 
the Illinois Election Code the question described above to be considered at the next 
General Primary Election on March 19, 2024. 

 
4. This Resolution shall take immediate full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval by the President, and publication as required by law. 
 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
_____ day of ___________, 2023, A.D. 
 
Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ 
day of ___________, 2023, A.D. 
 
 Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis  _________ 
 
 Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 
 Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 Pages 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 
Kane County, Illinois this _______ day of _________________, 2023 A.D. 
 
    
      ___________________________________ 
      Village President Mark Gaffino 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Village Clerk 


	23-12-04 Village Board Agenda
	23-11-20 VB Minutes
	23-11-20 COW Minutes
	Bills List 23-12-04 
	Travel and Business Expense Report
	Invoice

	Orchard Acres 1, 3, 4 Substantial Completion + Memo
	Resolution

	Building Code Update Board Final Packet
	Building Code Update + Memo
	Ordinance
	Exhibit A


	Zoning Code Text Amendments + Memo
	Ordinance

	Ice Cream Drive SSA + Memo
	Ordinance

	Orchard Gateway Boulevard Breakaway Modification + Memo
	Utility Dynamics Proposal Orchard Gateway Breakaway

	Elevated Water Storage Tank Design + Memo
	Professional Services Agreement

	2023 Tax Levy Items + Memo
	Messenger Library Resolution
	Ordinance for Levy and Assessment of Taxes for Village and Messenger Library for FY 23-24
	Ordinance Waterford Oaks SSA
	Ordinance Timber Oaks SSA
	Ordinance Pine Creek Phase 3 SSA
	Ordinance Willow Lakes SSA
	Ordinance North Aurora Towne Centre SSA
	Ordinance Debt Service GO Bonds Series 2014
	Ordinance debt Service GO Bonds Series 2017

	NHMR Sales Tax Referendum + Memo




